TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Financial Statements for year ended March 31, 2022
Along with Independent Auditors Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF
TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Ind-AS financial statements of Tata Motors Finance
Solutions Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity, (where applicable) the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended
and the Notes to the Ind-AS financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Ind AS
financial statements”).
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Ind-AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, (the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (Ind-AS) and with other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2022, the profit , total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the Ind-AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind-AS
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind-AS financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.
Key Audit Matter
How the matter was addressed in our audit
1) Impairment of Loans to Customers
Gross loans: INR 833,823.36 lakhs for year ended March 31, 2022
Provision: INR 25,315.56 lakhs at March 31, 2022
Refer to the accounting policies in ''Note 3(xvi)(A)(iii) to the Financial Statements: Impairment
of financial assets", "Note 3 (i) to the Financial Statements: Significant Accounting Policiesuse of estimates and judgments" and "Note 8 to the Financial Statements: Loans"
Subjective estimate:
Our key audit procedures included:
Under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments,
allowance for loan losses are determined
using expected credit loss (ECL) estimation
model. The estimation of ECL on financial
instruments involves significant judgement
and estimates. The key areas where we
identified greater levels of management
judgement and therefore increased levels of
audit focus in the Company's estimation of
ECLs are:
•

We performed end to end process
walkthroughs to identify the key systems,
applications and controls used in ECL
processes. We tested the relevant manual
(including spreadsheet controls), general IT
and application controls over key systems used
in ECL process.
Key aspects of' our controls testing involved
the following:

Data inputs - The application of ECL
model requires several data inputs. This
increases the risk of completeness and
accuracy of the data that has been used to
create assumptions in the model.
• Model estimations - Inherently
judgmental models are used to
estimate ECL which involves
determining Probabilities of Default
("PD"),
Loss
Given
Default
("'LGD''), and Exposures at Default
("EAD”). The PD and the LGD are
the key drivers of estimation
complexity in ECL and as a result are
considered the most significant
judgmental aspect of the Company's
modelling approach.

•

•

•

Qualitative adjustments –
Adjustments to the model-driven
ECL results are recorded by
management to address known
impairment model limitations or
emerging trends as well as risks not
captured by models. They represent
approximately 27 % of ECL balances
as at 31 March 2022. These

•

•
•

•

Testing the design and operating
effectiveness of the key controls over
the completeness and accuracy of the
key inputs, data and assumptions into
the Ind AS 109 impairment models
Testing the 'Governance Framework'
controls
over
validation,
implementation and model monitoring
inline with Reserve Bank of India
guidance.
Testing the design and operating
effectiveness of the key controls over
the application of the staging criteria.
Testing key controls relating to
selection and implementation of
material macro-economic variables and
the controls over the scenario selection
and application of probability weights
Testing management's controls over
authorisation and calculation of post
model adjustments and management
overlays.
Testing management's controls on
compliance with lnd AS 109
disclosures related to ECL.

adjustments are inherently uncertain
and
significant
management
judgement is involved in estimating
these amounts especially in relation
to economic uncertainty as a result of
COVID-19.
The underlying forecasts and assumptions
used in the estimates of impairment loss
allowance are subject to uncertainties which
are often outside the control of the Company.
The extent to which the COVID-19
pandemic will impact the Company's current
estimate of impairment loss allowances is
dependent on future developments, which
are highly uncertain at this point. Given the
size of loan portfolio relative to the balance
sheet and the impact of impairment
allowance on the financial statements, we
have considered this as a key audit matter.
Disclosures

•

Testing key controls operating over the
information technology system in
relation to loan impairment.

•

including system access and system
change
management,
program
development and computer operations.

Test of details
Key aspects of our testing included:
•

•
•

The disclosures regarding the Company's
application of Ind AS 109 are key to
explaining the key judgements and material
inputs to the lnd AS 109 ECL results.

•

Sample testing over key inputs, data and
assumptions impacting ECL calculations to
assess the completeness, accuracy and
relevance of data and reasonableness of
economic forecasts, weights, and model
assumptions applied.
Model calculations testing through reperformance, where possible.
Test of details of post model adjustments,
considering the size and complexity of
management overlays with a focus on
COVID-19 related overlays, in order to
assess the reasonableness of the
adjustments
by
challenging
key
assumptions, inspecting the calculation
methodology and tracing a sample of the
data used back to source data.
Assessing disclosures - We assessed
whether the disclosures appropriately
disclose and address the uncertainty which
exists when determining ECL. In addition,
we assessed whether the disclosure of the
key judgements and assumptions made was
sufficiently clear.

2) Assessment of Impairment testing of goodwill
Refer to the accounting policies in "Note 3(x) to the Financial Statements: lmpairment of nonfinancial assets'', "Note 3(i) to the Financial Statements: Significant Accounting Policies- use
of estimates and judgements" and "Note 12A to the Financial Statements: Goodwill ".
The Company has goodwill of INR Our key audit procedures included:
18,025.25 lakhs as at 31 March 2022. The
goodwill has been allocated to the Used • evaluating the appropriateness of the
vehicle cash-generating units ("CGU"). The
assumptions applied to key inputs such as
annual impairment testing of goodwill is
future income projections and interest
considered to be a key audit matter due to the
rates, operating costs, long-term growth
significant management judgement and
rates, in line with externally derived data as
estimates involved in determining the
well as our own assessments based on our

assumptions to arrive at the fair value of the
CGU. The fair value of the CGU is
determined using market and income-based •
approach. These approaches use several key
assumptions, including estimates of future
business, interest rates, operating costs,
terminal value growth rates, the weightedaverage cost of capital (discount
rate), and consideration of comparable
market multiples.
•

knowledge of the Company and the
industry.
performing our own sensitivity analysis,
which included assessing the effect of
reasonably possible reductions in growth
rates and forecast cash flows to evaluate the
impact on the currently estimated
headroom between the carrying value and
the estimated fair value of the CGU.
evaluating the adequacy of the financial
statement
disclosures,
including
disclosures
of
key
assumptions,
judgements and sensitivities.

3) Information technology
lnformation Technology ("IT") systems and Our audit procedures to assess the IT system
controls.
access management included the following:
The Company's key financial accounting and
reporting processes are highly dependent on
the automated controls in information
systems, such that there exists a risk that gaps
in the IT control environment could result in
the financial accounting and reporting
records being materially misstated. We have
focused on user access management, change
management, interface controls and system
application controls over key financial
accounting and reporting systems.

General IT controls & application controls and
user access management
•

•

•

•

•

We tested a sample of key controls
operating over the information technology
in relation to financial accounting and
reporting systems, including system access
and system change management, program
development and computer operations.
We tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls over user
access management which includes
granting access rights, new user creation,
removal of user rights and preventative
controls designed to enforce segregation of
duties.
For a selected group of key controls over
financial and reporting systems, we
independently performed procedures to
determine the operating effectiveness of
application controls. For those controls that
were changed during the year, we tested the
change management process.
We evaluated the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of the
significant accounts related IT automated
controls which are relevant to the accuracy
of system calculation, and the consistency
of data transmission.
Other areas that were independently
assessed included password policies,
system configurations, system interface

•

controls, controls over changes to
applications and that business users and
developers did not have access to migrate
changes in the production environment and
the privileged access to applications,
operating system or databases is restricted
to authorized personnel.
For system implemented, we evaluated the
program development related controls to
determine whether adequate controls have
been established to ensure that system
implemented was authorized, tested,
approved. Also, evaluated the SOCl Type2
report to determine the scope covered and
controls associated with processes at
Service Organisation.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to Note No. 55 to the Ind AS Financial Statements which describes the
extent to which the COVID 19 pandemic will have impact on the Company’s financial
performance is dependent on future developments, which are highly uncertain.
Our Conclusion on the Ind AS Financial Statements is not modified in respect of the above
matter.
Information Other than the Ind-AS financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Director’s Report, Management Discussion and Analysis and
Report on Corporate Governance but does not include the Ind-AS financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The Other information is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor’s report.
Our opinion on the Ind-AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the Ind-AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Ind-AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
When we read this other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and
review the steps taken by the management to communicate to those in receipt of the other
information, if previously issued, to inform them of the revision.
Management’s Responsibility for the Ind-AS financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind-AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and the cash flows

of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the Ind-AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the Ind-AS financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind-AS Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind-AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind-AS financial
statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to

continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of the users of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind-AS financial statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind-AS financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the ‘Annexure A’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.
2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity, dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind-AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time.
e) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors of the Company
as on March 31, 2022, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors
of the Company are disqualified as on March 31, 2022, from being appointed as a
Director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.
g) According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has paid / provided managerial
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of
Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other
details under Section 197 (16) which are required to be commented upon by us.
h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Ind-AS financial statements – Refer Note 29 to the Ind-AS financial
statements.
b. The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
d.
i. The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
ii. The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever

by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
iii. Based on our audit procedures we have considered it reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has
caused them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii)
contain any material misstatement.
e. The Company has not declared or paid dividend during the year. Hence, compliance
with section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No. 104607W / W100166
Damarla Sai
Venkata
Ramana
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Tata Motors Finance Solutions Limited
Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's report- March 31, 2022
(Referred to in 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement' section of our
report of even date)
We report that:
i.
(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
(b) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible
Assets.
(c) The Company has a program of physical verification to cover all the items of·
Property, Plant and Equipment over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies
were noticed on verification.
(d) According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of examination
of the records of the Company, the Company does not hold immovable properties
included under the head property, plant and equipment. Accordingly, clause 3(i)(d)
of the Order is not applicable.
(e) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right
of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.
(f) There are no proceedings being initiated or are pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
(45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.
ii.

The Company is in the business of lending. The Company does not hold any physical
inventories. Accordingly, clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iii.

The Company has made investments in companies and has granted secured and
unsecured loans to other parties, during the year, in respect of which:
(a) The Company is in the principal business of giving loans, Hence clause 3(iii)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.
(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the investments made, and
the conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and
guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the interest of the company.
(c) In respect of loans and advances, in the nature of loans granted during the year in the
ordinary course of lending business, the schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest have been stipulated and the repayment of loan and receipts of
interest are generally regular except there were cases which were not repaid / paid when
they were due or were repaid / paid with a delay. Such loans have been accounted for

in accordance with the Company’s policy on asset classification and provisioning as
described in Note 50 to the Ind AS financial statements.
Having regard to the voluminous nature of loan transactions, it is not practicable to
furnish borrower-wise details of irregularities. However, such details are available with
the Company. For details of total loans and advances which were overdue as of March
31, 2022, Refer Note 54 to the standalone financial statements.
(d) In respect of loans granted by the Company, The following amounts are overdue for
more than ninety days from companies or any other parties to whom loan has been
granted. The Company has taken reasonable steps for recovery of the overdue amount
of principal and interest.
No of cases

4548 cases

Principal
Amount
Overdue
22,980.43 lakhs

Interest
Overdue

Total Overdue

4822.82 lakhs

27803.25 lakhs

Remarks, if
any

(e) The Company is in the principal business of giving loans, Hence, clause 3(iii)(e) of the
Order is not applicable.
(f) The Company has an outstanding loan in the nature of loans or advances repayable on
demand during the year amounting to Rs. 50 Lakhs.
iv.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are
no loans / guarantees or security provided in connection with any loan which have been
given to directors to any other person in whom the director is interested, therefore the
provisions of Section 185 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. According to
information and explanations given to us. The Company has complied with the
applicable provisions of Section 186 of the Act in respect of loans, investments,
guarantees, and securities granted.

v.

The Company is a non-banking finance company and consequently is exempt from
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules
framed there under. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

vi.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under subsection (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the services rendered by the
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vii.
(a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination
of the books of account, and records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in
the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund.
employees' state insurance, income-tax, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess
and other material statutory dues have been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of sales
tax, duty of customs and duty of excise. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees

state insurance, income-tax, value added tax, goods and service tax. cess and other
material statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than
six months from the date on when become payable.
(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, and based on our examination
of records of the Company. There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) that
have not been deposited on account of dispute.
viii.

There are no instances of any transactions not being recorded in the books of account
that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ix.
(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon
to any lender;
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not declared
a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender;
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, term loans were applied for
the purpose for which the loans were obtained;
(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, funds raised on short term
basis have not been utilised for long term purposes;
(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures;
(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures
or associate companies,
x.
(a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year.
(b) The Company has issued Non-Convertible Debentures during the year and have
complied with the requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Act and the funds
raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.
The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
(fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year.
xi.
(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according
to the information and explanations given to us, except for 7 cases aggregating 233.46
lakhs which largely pertains to Cheating and forgery, we have neither come across any
instance of fraud by the Company or any material instance of fraud on the Company by
its officers or employees, noticed or reported;

(b) We have not filed any report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government.
(c) As per the information and explanation provided by the Company, there are no whistleblower complaints received during the year by the Company.
xii.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, transactions entered into by the Company with the
related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable
and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable Indian accounting standards.

xiv.
(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business;
(b) The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered by us;
xv.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly. the provisions
of clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company is registered under
Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and it has obtained the
registration. According to the information and explanation provided to us by the
Company, the Group has 5 Core Investment Companies (CICs) which are registered
with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and 1 CIC which is not required to be registered
with the RBI.

xvii.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

xviii. The statutory auditors of the Company have resigned during the year by virtue of the
RBI Directions and the incoming auditors appointed by virtue of section 143(8) of the
Act have communicated to the previous auditors and have obtained the No Objection
Certificate (NOC) from them before accepting the appointment.
xix.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, the auditor's knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report that Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date.

xx.
(a) There are no ‘other than ongoing projects’, wherein the Company has an unspent
amount required to be transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Act;
(b) In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has remaining unspent amount under subsection (5) of section 135 of the Act, which is required to be transferred to special
account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said
Act
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's report- March 31, 2022
Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid Financial
Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(Referred to in 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement' section of our
report of even date)
Opinion
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements of
Tata Motors Finance Solutions Limited (the "Company") as of 31 March 2022, in conjunction
with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to the Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal financial controls with reference to the
Financial Statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chm1ered Accountants of India (the "Guidance
Note").
Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company's management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference
to the Financial Statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013 (‘Act’).
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to the Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143 (1 0) of
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to the
Financial Statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements
included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists. And testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness

of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to the
Financial Statements.
Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to the Financial Statements
A company's internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of the financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to the
financial statements include those policies and procedures that (I) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to the Financial
Statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to the Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED (CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(₹ in lakhs)
Particulars

Notes

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

I ASSETS
1
(a)
(b)
(c)

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
i. Trade receivables
ii. Other receivables
(d) Loans
(e) Investments
(f) Other financial assets
2
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net)
Deferred tax assets (net)
Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Other non-financial assets

3 Assets Held for Sale

5
6

1900,52.91
-

810,29.46
50,00.00

7
7
8
9
10

17.02
78,04.39
8085,07.80
453,52.23
67,41.09
10584,75.44

57,60.22
6811,01.11
165,01.92
14,94.19
7908,86.90

11
11
12
12A
12B
13

17,49.92
11,30.79
1,49.18
180,25.25
18.91
27,57.07
238,31.12

42,33.77
19,51.41
1,93.77
180,25.25
74.80
27,58.17
272,37.17

59

23,39.76

Total assets

-

10846,46.32

8181,24.07

II LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
1 Financial liabilities
(a) Derivative financial instruments
(b) Payables
(i) Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) Other payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(c) Debt securities
(d) Borrowings (other than debt securities)
(e) Other financial liabilities
2
(a)
(b)
(c)

Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net)
Provisions
Other non-financial liabilities

3
(a)
(b)
(c)

Equity
Equity share capital
Instruments entirely equity in nature
Other equity

14
15

21,16.05

15
16
17
18

11,62.70
1886,07.15
6638,23.52
345,94.50
8918,79.57

6,81.05
1992,71.07
4534,23.09
66,63.32
6629,77.03

19
20

1,15.89
12,37.68
12,94.50
26,48.07

82.40
10,64.11
11,07.88
22,54.39

1700,49.74
100,00.00
100,68.94
1901,18.68
10846,46.32

1700,49.74
(171,57.08)
1528,92.65
8181,24.07

21
21A
21
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8,22.45

1,13.51
35,78.20

15
15

Total liabilities and equity
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements (1 to 61)
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TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED (CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
Particulars

I

Revenue from operations
(a)
Interest income
(b)
Dividend income
(c)
Net gain on fair value changes
(d)
Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments
Other fees and service charges
(e)
Total Revenue from operations

II

Other income

III

Total income (I + II)

IV

Expenses:
Finance costs
(a)
Impairment on financial instruments and other assets
(b)
Employee benefits expenses
(c)
Depreciation, amortization and impairment
(d)
Other expenses
(e)
Total expenses

V

Profit before tax (III - IV)

VI

Tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax
Total tax expense

(₹ in lakhs)
For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Notes

22
23

916,05.04
1,10.23
17,56.78
8216.81
23,88.89
1040,77.75

788,88.88
23,48.02
10,27.44
822,64.34

756.37

11,67.99

1048,34.12

834,32.33

498,80.26
166,72.73
50,92.58
139.09
91,70.58
809,55.24

430,94.01
114,77.14
39,57.09
1,64.24
67,34.52
654,27.00

238,78.88

180,05.33

24

25
26
27
12, 12B
28

11
xx

66,16.63
(19,31.62)
46,85.01

5,65.48
(19,51.42)
(13,85.96)

VII

Profit for the year (V - VI)

191,93.87

193,91.27

VIII

Other comprehensive income
A
i. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
a. Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans
Subtotal (A)
B
i. Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
a. Losses in cash flow hedges
b. Debt Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income
ii. Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Subtotal (B)
Other Comprehensive Income

0.78
0.78
(13.14)
109,35.42
(27,52.23)
81,70.05
81,70.83

IX

Total comprehensive income for the year (VII + VIII)

273,64.70

193,29.44

X

Earnings per equity share of ₹ 100 each
Basic (in ₹)
Diluted (in ₹)

11.29
11.29

11.40
11.40

(74.97)
(74.97)
13.14
13.14
(61.83)

29

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements (1 to 61)
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TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED (CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022
Particulars
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest Income on loans, investments and deposits
Finance cost
Dividend Income
Gain on sale of current investments
Allowance for loan losses and loans written off
Allowance for doubtful loans and advances (others)
MTM on investments measured at fair value through profit or loss
Balances written back
Loss on sale of assets
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Fair value gain on derivative instruments
Operating cash flow before working capital changes
Movements in working capital
Trade payables
Other payables
Other financial liabilities
Other non financial liabilities
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Loans
Other financial assets
Other non financial assets
Provisions
Finance cost paid
Interest income received on loans, investments and deposits
Income taxes paid (net)
Net cash used in operating activities
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipments and intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipments
Purchase of mutual fund units
Purchase of Government Securities
Redemption of mutual fund units
Dividend Income received
Deposits with banks
Net cash (used in) / generated investing activities

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

(₹ in lakhs)
For the year ended
March 31, 2021

238,78.88

180,05.33

(916,05.04)
498,80.26
(1,10.23)
(19,54.89)
166,71.73
1.00
198.11
(8.18)
1.42
139.09
(1756.78)
4,97.44
(41,67.18)

(788,88.88)
430,94.01
(22,91.57)
114,75.03
2.11
(56.45)
(4,57.04)
164.24
678.07
(82,75.15)

14,62.15
481.65
265,63.42
1,86.62
(17.02)
(20,44.17)
(1287,20.17)
(63,87.14)
,1.10
173.57
(1124,67.17)
(547,60.62)
912,66.50
(13,99.62)
(773,60.91)

(,81.31)
2,05.67
9,38.03
4,02.64
55.10
(56,11.89)
(1607,77.81)
(5,11.29)
(548.01)
28.20
(1741,75.82)
(397,69.91)
587,77.52
26,54.07
(1525,14.14)

(39.64)
2.43
(34212,00.00)
(297,02.23)
34210,82.76
1,10.23
50,00.00
(247,46.45)

(130.54)
3.31
(23657,85.03)
24180,23.41
5000.00
571,11.15

878,53.22
(1562,51.89)
98,61.32
7487,86.56
(4791,18.41)
2111,30.81

4035,91.63
(3060,25.16)
(100,00.00)
4897,04.16
(4151,72.90)
1620,97.73

1090,23.45

666,94.75

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Debt securities
Repayment of Debt securities
Repayment of Subordinated liabilities
Proceeds from issue of perpetual debt (net of issue expenses)
Proceeds from borrowings (other than debt securities)
Repayment of borrowings (other than debt securities)
Net cash generated from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) [Refer: Note below]

TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED (CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022
For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Particulars
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

(₹ in lakhs)
For the year ended
March 31, 2021

810,29.46

143,34.71

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 5)

1900,52.91

810,29.46

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents

1090,23.45

666,94.75

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements (1 to 61)
Note:
1 Finance costs has been considered as arising from operating activities in view of the nature of the Company's business.
2 The Statement of Cash Flows has been presented using indirect method as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.
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TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED (CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
A. Equity share capital

(₹ in lakhs)
As at March 31, 2022

Particulars
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year as at April 1, 2021
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior year errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the year
Changes in equity share capital during the current year
Shares issued during the year
Shares outstanding at the end of the year
Shares outstanding at the end of the year

As at March 31, 2021

Number
170,049,735
170,049,735

`
1700,49.74
170,219,785

Number
170,049,735
170,219,785

`
1700,49.74
170,050

170,049,735

1702197,84.74

170,219,785

1700,49.74

170,049,735

1700,49.74

170,219,785

1700,49.74

B. Other equity

(₹ in lakhs)
Particulars

Balance as at April 1, 2021
a) Profit for the year
b) Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Issue expenses on Instruments entirely equity in nature (net of
taxes)
Less:
Transfer to Special Reserve
Balance as at March 31, 2022

Reserves & Surplus
Retained earnings
Special reserve* Undistributable
Distributable
(Ind AS 101)
95,48.29
(66,16.87)
(201,01.64)
191,93.88
0.78
191,94.66
-

Debt instruments
through OCI
8,183.19
8,183.19

Cost of Hedging
Reserve

Hedging
Reserve

14.58
(14.58)
(14.58)

Total equity
(171,57.08)
191,93.88
8,170.83
273,64.71

(1.44)
1.44
1.44

(1,38.68)

(1,38.68)

38,38.78
133,87.07

(66,16.87)

(38,38.78)
(48,84.45)

81,83.19

13,387.07

(6,616.87)

(4,884.45)

8,183.19

Reserves & Surplus
Retained earnings
Special reserve* Undistributable
Distributable
(Ind AS 101)

Particulars

Other components of equity

Balance as at April 1, 2020

56,70.04

(66,16.87)

(355,39.69)

a) Profit for the year
b) Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Less:
Transfer to Special Reserve
Balance as at March 31, 2021

38,78.25
95,48.29

(66,16.87)

193,91.27
(74.97)
19,316.30
(38,78.25)
(201,01.64)

-

-

100,68.94

(₹ in lakhs)
Other components of equity
Debt instruments
through OCI

Cost of Hedging
Reserve

Hedging
Reserve

Total equity

-

-

-

(364,86.52)

-

14.58
14.58
14.58

(1.44)
(1.44)
(1.44)

193,91.27
(61.83)
193,29.44
(171,57.08)

*Transfer to special reserve: As per Section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 every non-banking financial company shall create a reserve fund and transfer therein a sum not less than
twenty per cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the Statement of Profit and Loss and before any dividend is declared. No appropriation of any sum from the reserve fund shall be made
by the non-banking financial company except for the purpose as may be specified by the Reserve Bank of India from time to time and every such appropriation shall be reported to the Reserve
Bank of India within twenty-one days from the date of such withdrawal.
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements (1 to 61)
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TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED (CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
1

Company information
Tata Motors Finance Solutions Limited ("the Company") is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office in Mumbai, India. The Company
is registered as a Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Company ("NBFC") under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI"), Act
1934 with effect from December 8, 2003.
The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of TMF Holdings Limited with effect from January 19, 2015. The Company is engaged primarily in lending activities in providing finance,
a) for pre owned vehicles and b) to Corporate dealers and vendors of ultimate parent company (referred to as "Tata Motors Limited"), through its pan India branch network.
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on April 28, 2022.

2

Basis of preparation of financial statements

2.1 Statement of compliance
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
(the ‘Act') read with relevant rules issued thereunder and the other accounting principles generally accepted in India. Any application guidance/ clarifications/ directions issued by
the Reserve Bank of India or other regulators are implemented as and when they are issued/ applicable.
The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses and the disclosed amount of contingent liabilities. Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions are significant to the
Company are discussed in Note 3.1 - Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions.
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs, except when otherwise indicated.
2.2 Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments and plan assets of defined benefit plans, which are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period as explained in the accounting policies below.
2.3 Presentation of financial statements
The financial statements of the Company are presented as per Schedule III (Division III) of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (MCA). The Statement of Cash Flows has been presented using indirect method as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.
3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(i)

Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date of these financial statements and reported amounts of income and expenses
for the years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates is revised
and future period affected.
In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements are included in following notes :
a) Note 3(xvi) A- Business model assessment for classification and measurement of financial assets
b) Note 3 (xvi) A - and 34 Impairment of financial assets based on the expected credit loss model
c) Note 3(vii) and 3(viii)- Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
c) Note 3(xi) and 37 Measurement of assets and obligations of defined benefit employee plans.
d) Note 3(iv) and 11- Recognition of deferred tax assets.
e) Note 3(xii), 19 & 31 - Measurement and recognition of provisions and contingent liabilities.
f) Note 3(xvii) and 33- Fair value measurement of financial instruments.
g) Note 3(xvi)A - Effective Interest Rate (EIR) methodology that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of financial instruments.
h) Note 3(x) & 12A- Impairment of intangible assets- goodwill

(ii)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from Operations
(a) Income on loans arising from financing activities
Interest income is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets. When a financial asset
becomes credit-impaired, the Company calculates interest income by applying the effective interest rate to the net amortized cost of the financial asset.
The EIR in case of a financial asset is computed
- the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.
- by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash flows.
- Including all fees/service charges and incentives paid and received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all
other premiums or discounts.
Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest income with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.
Overdue interest are recorded when realised since the probability of collecting such monies is established when the customer pays.
Income from direct assignment
Gains arising out of direct assignment transactions comprise the difference between the interest on the loan portfolio and the applicable rate at which the direct assignment is
entered into with the assignee, also known as the right of excess interest spread (EIS). The future EIS basis the scheduled cash flows on execution of the transaction, discounted at
the applicable rate entered into with the assignee is recorded upfront in the statement of profit and loss. Any subsequent changes in the excess interest spread is recognised with
the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.

The Company recognises either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for servicing contract. If the fee to be received is expected to be more than adequate compensation for the
servicing activities, a servicing asset is recognised with a corresponding credit in Statement of Profit and Loss. If the fee to be received is not expected to compensate the Company
adequately for performing the servicing activities, a servicing liability for the servicing obligation is recognised with a corresponding charge to Statement of Profit and Loss.
Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the date when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of dividend can be reliably measured.
Fees and Commission Income
Fees and commissions which do not form part of the effective interest rate calculation are recognised when the Company satisfies the performance obligation and are accrued as
and when they are due.
Other Income
Support Services Fee income earned for the services rendered are recognized as and when they are due.
(iii) Foreign currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company.
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are remeasured into the functional currency at the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date.
Exchange differences are recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent, exchange differences which are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign
currency borrowings, are capitalised as part of borrowing costs.
(iv) Income Taxes
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of profit & loss except when they relate to items that are recognised
outside the statement of profit and loss (whether in other comprehensive income or directly in equity), in which case tax is also recognised outside the statement of profit and loss.
Current income taxes are determined based on respective taxable income of Company and tax rules applicable for respective tax jurisdictions.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases, and unutilised business loss and depreciation carry-forwards and tax credits. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are computed separately. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carryforwards and unused tax credits could be utilized.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current and deferred tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
(v)

Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are short-term (three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(vi) Earning per share
Basic earnings per share has been computed by dividing profit for the year by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share has
been computed using the weighted average number of shares and dilutive potential shares, except where the result would be anti-dilutive.
(vii) Property, Plant and equipment (PPE)
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Cost includes purchase price, non-refundable taxes and levies
and other directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to its location and working condition for its intended use.
The cost of an item of PPE is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company in future periods, and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure incurred after the PPE have been put into operations, such as repairs and maintenance expenses, are charged to the
statement of profit and loss during the period in which they are incurred.
An item of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the assets. Any gain or loss, arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of PPE, is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.
Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation/under development as at the reporting date.
Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method over the useful lives of the assets considering the nature, estimated usage, operating conditions, past history of replacement
and anticipated technological changes.
Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013 (‘Schedule’) prescribes the useful lives for various class of assets. For certain class of assets, based on technical evaluation and assessment,
Management believes that, the useful lives adopted by it reflects the periods over which these assets are expected to be used. Accordingly for those assets, the useful lives
estimated by management are different from those prescribed in the Schedule. Management’s estimates of the useful lives for various class of PPE are as given below:
Type of Asset
Data Processing Machines
Furniture and Fixture
Office Equipment
Motor Vehicles

Estimated useful life
3 Years
5 and 10 Years
2 to 10 Years
4 and 5 Years

The useful lives and method of depreciation is reviewed at least at each year-end. Changes in expected useful lives are treated as change in accounting estimates.
Depreciation on additions is provided on a pro-rata basis from the date of installation or acquisition. Depreciation on deductions/ disposals is provided on a pro-rata basis upto the
month preceding the month of deduction/disposal.
However, leasehold improvements and PPE located in leasehold premises are depreciated on a straight-line method over shorter of their respective useful lives or the tenure of the
lease arrangement.
Individual assets costing less than ₹ 5,000/- are expensed off at the time of purchase.

(viii) Other intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is its fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment, whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in
the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss
unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Intangible assets and their useful lives are as under
Type of asset Estimated useful life
Software
5 years
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.
(ix) Leases
Contracts/arrangements, or part of a contract/arrangement meeting the definition of "lease" and falling within the scope of Ind AS 116 "Leases" to follow accounting policies
below
(A) Company as a Lessee- Assets taken on lease
(i) Right of use of assets
The Company recognises right- of- use assets at the commencement date of the lease. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at
the end of the lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and lease term. Right-of-use assets
are subject to impairment.
(ii) Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) and variable lease payment that depend on a index or rate less any lease incentives receivable. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as an expense in the period on which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest with corresponding amount recognised in
finance cost under the statement of profit and loss and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.
(iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company applies recognition exemption of not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option) and low-value assets that are considered of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
(x)

Impairment of Non financial assets
Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable.
At each balance sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that any property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite lives may be impaired. If
any such impairment exists the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(xi) Employee benefits
(A) Short term employee benefits
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognised during the period when the
employee renders the service. These benefits include salaries and performance incentives/bonuses which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in
which the employee renders the related services.
(B) Post Employment/retirement benefit Plans
(1) Defined contribution plans
For provident fund and superannuation fund, Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made. Payments/contributions to the Company’s
defined contribution plans are accounted for on an accrual basis (i.e. when employees have rendered the service entitling them to the contribution) and are recognised as an
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
(a) Provident fund
The employees are entitled to receive benefits under provident fund, where both, the employees and the Company, make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the
covered employees’ basic salary. The contribution is paid to the Regional Provident Fund office. The Company has no liability for future benefits other than its annual contribution
and recognises such contributions as an expense in the year in which employee renders the related services.

(b) Superannuation fund
Contribution to the superannuation fund is made at 15% of basic salary for the employees who have opted to the scheme, managed by the ultimate parent Company and is charged
to the Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basis.
(2) Defined benefit plans
(a) Gratuity
For defined benefit schemes in the form of gratuity plan, the cost of providing benefits is actuarially determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations
being carried out at each year end. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as reduced by
the fair value of scheme assets.
The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, post employment/retirement defined benefit plan covering eligible employees. The benefit is in the form of lump sum payments
to eligible employees on resignation, retirement, or death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days’ to 30 days’ basic salary
payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The liability determined basis actuarial valuation is compared with the fair value
of plan assets and the shortfall or excess is accounted for as a liability or an asset respectively.
The present value of the said obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows, using market yields of government bonds of equivalent term and currency
to the liability.
The interest income / (expense) are calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The net interest income / (expense) on the net defined
benefit liability is recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss.
Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in OCI. They
are included in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the Balance Sheet.
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

(C) Other long term employee benefit plans
(1) Defined benefit plans
(a) Compensated absences
The liabilities for compensated absences are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.
They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period
using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the appropriate market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the
terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

(xii) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to the net present value using an appropriate pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot
be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events, not wholly within the control of the Company.

Claims against the Company, where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities. Provisions, contingent liabilities
and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.
Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements.
(xiii) Dividend
Any dividend declared or paid by Company is based on the profits available for distribution as reported in the financial statements. Indian law mandates that dividend be declared
out of distributable profits, after setting off un-provided losses and depreciation of previous years. In case of inadequacy or absence of profits in a particular year, a Company may
pay dividend out of accumulated profits of previous years transferred to statement of profit and loss. However, in the absence of accumulated profits a Company may declare
dividend out of free reserves, subject to certain conditions as prescribed under the Companies (Declaration and Payment of Dividend) Rules, 2014. Accordingly, in certain years the
net income reported in these financial statements may not be fully distributable. Further, declaration of dividend from the profits of the financial year ending March 31, 2022 are
also subject to guidelines of RBI in this regard.
(xiv) Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker.
The power to assess the financial performance and position of the Company and make strategic decisions is vested in the Board of Directors Committee who has been identified as
the Chief Operating Decisions Maker.
(xv) Investment in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates
Investments in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates are measured at cost as per Ind AS 27 – Separate Financial Statements.
(xvi) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments are
recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
(A) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. However, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset are added to the fair value. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.
Classification and subsequent measurement
For the purposes of initial recognition, financial assets are classified in the following categories :a. at amortised cost, or
b. at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), or
c. at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
The above classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flow.
(I) Debt Instruments
Initial classification of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments.
(a) At amortised cost:
A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost, if both the following conditions are satisfied/ fulfilled
- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and
- Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the profit or loss.
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to loans arising from financing activities and investments.
(b) At FVTOCI:
A debt instrument is classified at FVTOCI, if both of the following criteria are met:
- The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and
- Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the OCI.
However, the Company recognises interest income, impairment losses and reversals in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income
using the EIR method.

(c) At FVTPL:
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at
FVTPL.
In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).
Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Derivatives embedded in a host contract that is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 109 are not separated. Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.
(II) Equity Instruments/investments
Investments in equity instruments are measured at fair value. Equity instruments, which are held for trading, are classified as at FVTPL. For equity instruments, other than held for
trading, the Company has irrevocable option to present in OCI subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.
Where the Company classifies equity instruments as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of
the amounts from OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment.
Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
(III) Impairment of financial assets
The Company applies the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model in accordance with Ind AS 109 for recognising impairment loss on financial assets except for
- equity instruments which are not subject to impairment under Ind AS 109, and
- other debt financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial assets ('lifetime ECL), unless there had been
no significant increase in credit risk of a default occurring since origination or initial recognition, in which case, the impairment allowance is based on the 12-month ECL. The 12month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
ECL (both life time and 12 months) for loans for pre-owned vehicles are calculated on a collective basis considering the homogeneous nature of the underlying portfolio of financial
assets. For loans to corporate dealers and vendors of Ultimate Holding Company, ECL is calculated bias individual assessment.
The impairment methodology applies depends on whether there has been significant increase in credit risk. When determining whether credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, including on historical experience and forward-looking information.
The expected credit loss is a product of exposure at default (‘EAD’), probability of default (‘PD’) and loss given default (‘LGD’). The Company has devised an internal model to
evaluate the PD and LGD based on the parameters set out in Ind AS 109. Accordingly, the financial assets have been segmented into three stages based on the risk profiles. The
three stages reflect the general pattern of credit deterioration of a financial assets. The Company categorises financial assets at the reporting date into stages based on the days
past due (‘DPD’) status as under:

- Stage 1: Low credit risk, i.e. 0 to 30 days past due
- Stage 2: Significant increase in credit risk, i.e. 31 to 90 days past due
- Stage 3: Credit Impaired assets, i.e. more than 90 days past due or Cases where company suspects fraud and legal proceedings are initiated.
For restructured cases which are not getting covered under any specific regulatory package issued by RBI, as a part of qualitative assessment of whether a customer is in default
(i.e. credit impaired), the Company carefully considers and assesses various instances to determine whether the restructuring of a loan or advance should result in treating the
customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as stage 3 for ECL calculations.
Definition of default
The Company considers a financial asset to be in “default” and therefore Stage 3 (credit impaired) for ECL calculations when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on its
contractual payments.
LGD is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the
Company would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.
PD is defined as the probability of whether the borrowers will default on their obligations in the future. For assets which are in Stage 1, a 12-month PD is required. For Stage 2
assets a lifetime PD is required while Stage 3 assets are considered as default. PD estimation process is done based on historical internal data available with the Company.
EAD represents gross carrying amount at the reporting date in case of Stage 1 and Stage 2. In case of Stage 3 loans EAD represents gross carrying amount at the time when the
default occurred for 1st time.
Forward looking information
While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the
Company analyses if there is any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, Brent rates, benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate
of PD determined by the Company based on its internal data. While the internal estimates of PD rates by the Company may not be always reflective of such relationships,
temporary overlays, if any, are embedded in the methodology to reflect such macro-economic trends reasonably.
Based on the consideration of external actual and forecast information, the Company forms a ‘base case’ view of the future direction of relevant economic variables. This process
involves developing two or more additional economic scenarios and considering the relative probabilities of each outcome. The base case represents a most likely outcome while
the other scenarios represent more optimistic and more pessimistic outcomes.
Collateral valuation:
The Company creates & secures first and exclusive collateral charge at the time of loan origination on all vehicles for which vehicle financing loans are given. Hypothecation
endorsement is obtained in favour of the Company in the Registration Certificate of the Vehicle funded under the vehicle finance category (98% secured - tangible assets). Other
than the above, for the corporate lending loan exposure, wherever required the Company obtains security cover in the form of immoveable properties by creating charge over the
collateral. Any surplus remaining after settlement of outstanding loan by way of sale of vehicle (collateral) is returned to the customer. In case where the Company has settled
outstanding dues against repossession of the underlying collateral, collateral is recorded as assets held for sale in the balance sheet.
The Company enters into a financial guarantee contracts which require the issuer of such contract to reimburse the Company for a loss it incurs because a specified customer fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of the loan. For these separate third party financial guarantee contracts, the Company recognises a reimbursement asset
of an amount expected to receive from issuer of financial guarantee with a corresponding reimbursement gain as a reduction in the impairment charge in the Statement of profit
and loss, if it is considered virtually certain that a reimbursement would be received if the specified customer fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of the
loans. Reimbursement gain is presented as other financial assets in the balance sheet.
The measurement of impairment losses across all the categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows
and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in
which can result in different levels of allowances. The Company’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice of
variable inputs and their interdependencies. The inputs and models used for calculating ECLs may not always capture all characteristics of the market at the date of financial
statements. The Company regularly reviews its models in the context of actual loss experience and makes adjustments when such differences are significantly material.
The amount of ECL (or reversal) at the reporting date is recognised as an impairment loss/(gain) in the statement of profit and loss.
ECL on Debt instruments measured at amortised cost
The ECLs for debt instruments measured at amortised cost is reduced from the gross carrying amount of these financial assets in the balance sheet.
Write-off
The gross carrying amount of a financial assets is written- off (either partially or fully) to the extent that there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the asset in its entirety or a
portion thereof. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities under the Company’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. Any subsequent recoveries against such financial assets are credited to the statement of profit and loss.
(IV) Derecognition of financial assets
The Company de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises an associated
liability as collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in OCI, and accumulated in equity is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
(B) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments, issued by the Company, are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity, in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
(I) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value. However, in the case of financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issue of financial liabilities are deducted from the fair value of financial liabilities. The transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss.
The Company’s financial liabilities majorly comprise of trade and other payables, loans and borrowings, including bank overdrafts and cash credit facility and derivative financial
instruments.
Subsequent measurement
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method or at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
(a) At FVTPL:
Financial liabilities includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated and effective as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading, unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Financial liabilities, designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL, are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.
(b) At amortised cost:
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest expenses
in the profit or loss.
Financial guarantee contracts:
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts issued by a Company are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:
- the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments; and
- the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts of
customers.
Derecognition of financial liabilities:
The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability de-recognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.
Modification/Renegotiation that do not result in derecognition
Changes to the carrying amount of a financial liability as a result of renegotiation or modification of terms that do not result in derecognition of the financial liability, is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows of financial liability is recognised under finance cost in the statement of profit
or loss with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial liability.
(II) Equity Instrument
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences residual interests in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities.
Incremental costs incurred which are directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
(III) Compound financial Instrument
The components of compound financial instruments issued by the Company are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled by exchange of fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company's own equity instruments is an equity instrument.
At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non convertible instruments. This amount is recognised
as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest rate method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument's maturity date.
The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of liability component from the fair value of the compound financial instruments as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until the
conversion option is exercised, in which case, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to other component of equity. When the conversion option remains unexercised
at the maturity date, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to retained earnings. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the
conversion option.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible instrument are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included in the carrying amount of the
liability component and are amortised over the life of the convertible instrument using effective interest rate method.
(xvi) Derivatives and Hedging activities
The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate risk and foreign exchange rate risk, including foreign exchange forward
contracts and interest rate swaps. Further details of derivative financial instruments are disclosed in Note 15.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting
date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in Statement of profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument (Refer sub note (a)
below), in which event the timing of recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedging relationship and nature of the hedge item.
Embedded derivatives
Derivatives embedded in a host contract that is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 109 are not separated. Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.
Derivatives embedded in all other host contract are separated only if the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are not closely related to the economic
characteristics and risks of the host and accordingly, are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives closely related to the host contracts are not separated.

(a) Hedge accounting
The Company designates foreign currency forward derivative contracts as hedges of foreign exchange risk associated with the cash flows of foreign currency risks associated with
the borrowings denominated in foreign currency (referred to as "cash flow hedges").
The Company documents at the inception of the hedging transaction the economic relationship between the hedging instruments and hedge items including whether the hedging
instrument is expected to offset changes in the cash flows of hedge items. The Company documents its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions at the inception of the hedging relationship.

Cash flow hedges
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity to effective portion (as described above) are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods
when the hedge item affects profit or loss, in the same line as the recognised hedge item.
In cases where the designated hedging instruments are forward contracts, the Company has an option, for each designation, to designate on an instrument only the changes in
spot element of forward contracts respectively as hedges. In such cases, the forward element (i.e. forward premium) is accounted based on the type of hedge which those forward
contract hedge.
The changes in the forward element of the forward contracts are recognised within other comprehensive income in the costs of hedging reserve within equity.
In case of transaction related hedge item in the above cases, the changes in the forward element (i.e. forward premium) of the forward contracts accumulated within other
comprehensive income in the costs of hedging reserve within equity is reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment in the same period in which the hedged expected
future cash flows affect profit or loss.
In case of time-period related hedge item in the above cases, the changes in the forward element (i.e. forward premium) of the forward contracts accumulated within other
comprehensive income in the costs of hedging reserve within equity is amortised on a systematic and rational basis over the period during which the forward contracts spot
element could affect profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment from other comprehensive income.
Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting.
(xvii) Fair value measurement
A number of Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company can access at measurement date;
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) that the Company can access at measurement date
(xviii) Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset when it currently has a legally enforceable right (not contingent on future events) to off-set the recognised amounts and the
Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
(xiv) Recent Accounting Pronouncement
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to
time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1st, 2022, as below:
i) Ind AS 103 – Business Combination
The amendments specifiy that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Company does not expect the amendment to
have any significant impact in its financial statements.
ii) Ind AS 16 – Property, Plant and Equipment
The amendments prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company is preparing
the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Company does not expect the amendments to have any
impact in its recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its financial statements.
iii) Ind AS 37 – Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any
significant impact in its financial statements.
iv) Ind AS 109 – Financial Instruments
The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. The Company does
not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.
v) Ind AS 106 – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)
The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives were described in that illustration. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in
its financial statements.

TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED (CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
Note 5
Cash and cash equivalents
(₹ in lakhs)
Particulars
Cash on hand
Balance with Banks
Cheques, drafts on hand
Bank deposit with maturity of less than 3 months
Total

As at
March 31, 2022
1,36.76
916,88.64
2,27.51
980,00.00
1900,52.91

As at
March 31, 2021
1,44.20
417,59.38
1,25.88
390,00.00
810,29.46

Note 6
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
(₹ in lakhs)
Particulars
Deposits with banks
Total

As at
March 31, 2022
-

As at
March 31, 2021
50,00.00
50,00.00

Note 7
Trade receivables
(₹ in lakhs)
Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Receivables considered good - Unsecured

17.02

-

Total

17.02

-

No trade receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other
person. Not any trade receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a
director or a member.

TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED (CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
As at March 31, 2022
Less than 6
6 Months - 1
Particulars
Months
Year
1-2 Years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables –
considered good
17.02
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables –
which have significant increase in
credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables –
credit impaired
(iv)
Disputed
Trade
Receivables–considered good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables –
which have significant increase in
credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables –
credit impaired
Total
17.02
-

Particulars
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables –
considered good
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables –
which have significant increase in
credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables –
credit impaired
(iv)
Disputed
Trade
Receivables–considered good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables –
which have significant increase in
credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables –
credit impaired
Total

Less than 6
Months

As at March 31, 2021
6 Months - 1
Year
1-2 Years

2-3 Years

More than 3 Years
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

17.02

2-3 Years

More than 3 Years

17.02

Total

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Note 7
Other receivables
(₹ in lakhs)
Particulars

Total

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Unsecured, considered good

78,04.39

57,60.22

Total

78,04.39

57,60.22

No other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other
person. Nor any other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a
director or a member.

TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED (CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
Note 8
Loans
(₹ in lakhs)
Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

At Amortised Cost
(A)
From Financing Activities
- Term loans
- Channel financing
- Credit subsitutes (refer note 1 below)
From other than financing activities
- Inter corporate deposits (repayable on demand)
Total (A) - Gross
Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total (A) - Net

4666,13.29
1198,34.45
736,68.39

5869,60.24
641,20.26
433,39.92

50.02
6601,66.15
(249,94.72)
6351,71.43

50.02
6944,70.44
(133,69.33)
6811,01.11

(B)
At fair value through Other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
From financing activities
- Term loans
Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total (B) - Net

1736,57.21
(3,20.84)
1733,36.37

(C)
Secured by tangible assets (refer note 2 below)
Covered by government guarantees (refer note 3 below)
Unsecured
Total (C) - Gross
Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total (C) - Net

7059,53.50
443,05.19
835,64.67
8338,23.36
(253,15.56)
8085,07.80

6074,99.26
436,68.70
433,02.48
6944,70.44
(133,69.33)
6811,01.11

8338,23.36

6944,70.44

8338,23.36
(253,15.56)
8085,07.80

6944,70.44
(133,69.33)
6811,01.11

(D )
Loans in India
- Public Sector
- Others
Loans outside India
- Public Sector
- Others
Total (D) - Gross
Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total (D) - Net
Notes:

-

1. Investments in bonds, debentures and other financial instruments which, in substance, form a part of the Company’s
financing activities (“Credit Substitutes”) have been classified under Loans.
2. The Company covers/secures the credit risk associated with the loans given to customers by creating an exclusive
charge/hypothecation/security on the assets/vehicles as mentioned/specified in the loan agreement with the customers.
3. Backed by credit guarantee of the government under the Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme (ECLGS) having
hundred percent guarantee cover.

TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED (CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
Note 9
Investments

#REF!
(₹ in lakhs)
Amortised
cost

Particulars

(1)

Through
OCI
(2)

As at March 31, 2022
At fair value
Through
Sub total
profit or loss
(3)

(4=2+3)

Others*
(at cost)

Total

Amortised
cost

(5)

(6=1+4+5)

(7)

Through
OCI
(8)

As at March 31, 2021
At fair value
Through
Sub total
profit or loss
(9)

(10=8+9)

Others*
(at cost)

Total

(11)

(12=7+10+
11)

i. Mutual funds
ii. Government securities
iii. Debt securities
iv. Equity instruments
Total (A) - Gross

29,702.23
297,02.23

-

51,50.00
51,50.00

51,50.00
51,50.00

105,00.00
105,00.00

29,702.23
51,50.00
105,00.00
453,52.23

-

-

53.81
59,48.11
60,01.92

53.81
59,48.11
60,01.92

105,00.00
105,00.00

53.81
59,48.11
105,00.00
165,01.92

i. investments outside India
ii. Investments in India
Total (B)
Less: Allowance for impairment loss (C)
Total (D) = (A + C)

297,02.23
297,02.23

-

51,50.00
51,50.00
51,50.00

51,50.00
51,50.00
51,50.00

105,00.00
105,00.00

453,52.23
453,52.23
453,52.23

-

-

60,01.92
60,01.92
60,01.92

60,01.92
60,01.92
60,01.92

105,00.00
105,00.00

165,01.92
165,01.92
165,01.92

297,02.23

105,00.00

-

Details of investments
Particulars
a. Measured at Fair value through profit or loss
i. Investment in compulsory convertible debentures (unquoted)
ii. Mutual funds
Total (I)
b. Measured at amortised cost
i. Investment in Government securities (Quoted)
G-Sec bonds
Treasury- Bills
Total (II)
c. Others (measured at cost)*
i. Investment in equity shares (unquoted)
Tata Motors Finance Limited
(18,22,016 shares @ Face Value of ₹ 100.00 per share)
Total (III)
* Investments in associates measured at cost based on IND AS 27 - Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements.

As at
March 31, 2022

(₹ in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2021

51,50.00
51,50.00

59,48.11
53.81
60,01.92

197,43.25
99,58.98
297,02.23

-

105,00.00

105,00.00

105,00.00

105,00.00

As at
March 31, 2022
34.11
12,03.09
5,503.89

(₹ in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2021
23.70
8,64.55
6,05.94

Note 10
Other financial assets
Particulars
Deposits
Interest accrued on deposits and investments
Others
Total

67,41.09

14,94.19

105,00.00

TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED (CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
Note 11
Income taxes
a) Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss
For the year
ended March 31,
2022

(₹ in lakhs)
For the year
ended March 31,
2021

Income tax expense
Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year
Total current tax expense

6,616.63
6,616.63

565.48
565.48

Deferred tax
(Increase) in deferred tax assets
Increase in deferred tax liabilities
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit)
Total Income Tax expense

(23,86.85)
4,55.24
(19,31.62)
46,85.02

(29,57.02)
10,05.60
(19,51.42)
(13,85.94)

Particulars

b) Reconciliation of the income tax expenses and accounting profit
Reconciliation of the income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate:
For the year
ended March 31,
2022
238,78.88
60,09.84

Particulars
Profit/(Loss) before taxes
Income tax expenses calculated at statutory tax rate at 25.168 %)
Tax effect of the amount which are not taxable in calculating taxable income :
- Effect of income that is exempt from taxation
- Effect of expenses not deductible for tax computation
- Utilization of unrecognised and unused tax losses to reduce current tax expense
- Deferred tax assets not recognised because realization is not probable
- Adjustments recognised in relation to the current tax of prior years
- Others
Income tax expense recognised for the year at effective tax rate

(2,71.83)
(10,53.00)
46,85.01

(₹ in lakhs)
For the year
ended March 31,
2021
180,05.33
45,31.58
(49,91.41)
(8,08.11)
(1,18.00)
(13,85.94)

c) Deferred tax assets/liabilities (net)
Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2022 are as follows:
(₹ in lakhs)

Particulars

Deferred tax liabilities :
- Property, plant & equipment- Accumulated depreciation
- Fair Valuation of financial assets measured at FVTPL
- Sourcing commission claimed on incurrence basis
- Income to be taxed on Actual receipt basis
Total deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax asset :
- Expenses deductible in future years:
provisions for impairment allowances for doubtful
receivables and others
Compensated absences and retirement benefits
allowable on payment basis
- Others
Total deferred tax assets
Net deferred tax asset/(liabilities)

As at
April 1, 2021

Charged/
(credited) to
profit and loss

Charged/
(credited) to
Other
Comprehensive
Income

As at
March 31, 2022

10,09.82
50.02
6,46.25
74.16
17,80.25

(1060.79)
(54.05)
2,00.00
13,70.08
4,55.24

33,75.20

26,07.68

-

59,82.88

56.73
299.73
37,31.66
19,51.41

1.38
(222.21)
23,86.85
19,31.61

-

58.11
77.52
61,18.51
11,30.79

27,52.23
27,52.23

(2752.00)

(50.97)
27,48.20
8,46.25
14,44.24
49,87.72

TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED (CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2021 are as follows:
(₹ in lakhs)

Particulars

Deferred tax liabilities :
- Property, plant & equipment- Accumulated depreciation
- Fair Valuation of financial assets measured at FVTPL
- Sourcing commission claimed on incurrence basis
- Income to be taxed on Actual receipt basis
Total deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax asset :
- Expenses deductible in future years:
provisions for impairment allowances for doubtful
receivables and others
Compensated absences and retirement benefits
allowable on payment basis
- Others
Total deferred tax assets
Net deferred tax asset/(liabilities)

As at
April 1, 2020

Charged/
(credited) to
profit and loss

Charged/
(credited) to
Other
Comprehensive
Income

As at
March 31, 2021

35.81
5,18.37
2,20.46
7,74.64

10,09.82
14.21
1,27.88
(1,46.30)
10,05.61

-

1009.82
50.02
6,46.25
74.16
17,80.25

7,74.64

26,00.56

-

33,75.20

7,74.64
-

56.73
2,99.73
29,57.02
19,51.41

-

56.73
2,99.73
37,31.66
19,51.41

d) Amounts recognised directly in equity
Tax impact of ₹ 52.57 lakhs (FY2021-Nil) on distribution to instrument entirely equity in nature has been routed through reserve.
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
Note 12
Property, plant and equipment

(₹ in lakhs)
Gross Block
Balance as at
April 01, 2021

Particulars

Vehicles
Furniture & Fixtures
Office equipments
Data processing machines
Total

1,02.65
10.26
1,65.92
2,16.34
4,95.17

Additions

Accumulated depreciation

Deletions

39.64
-

16.88
1.52
0.45
18.85

39.64

Balance as at
March 31, 2022

1,25.41
10.26
1,64.40
2,15.89
5,15.96

Balance as at
April 01, 2021

Depreciation

48.77
1.26
1,48.41
1,02.96
3,01.40

26.80
0.98
9.18
46.25
83.22

Balance as at
April 01, 2020

Depreciation

Gross Block
Balance as at
April 01, 2020

Particulars

Additions

Deletions

16.03
1.43
0.38
17.84

Net Block
Balance as at March Balance as at March
31, 2022
31, 2022

59.54
2.24
1,56.16
1,48.83
3,66.77

Accumulated depreciation

Deletions

Balance as at
March 31, 2021

Deletions

65.87
8.02
8.24
67.06
1,49.18
Net Block

Balance as at March Balance as at March
31, 2021
31, 2021

Vehicles
Furniture & Fixtures
Office equipments
Data processing machines

82.72
10.26
1,65.92
94.73

41.29
1,21.61

21.36
-

102.65
10.26
1,65.92
2,16.34

40.44
0.29
1,14.33
55.95

26.38
0.97
34.08
47.01

18.05
-

48.77
1.26
1,48.41
1,02.96

53.88
9.00
17.51
1,13.38

Total

3,53.63

1,62.90

21.36

4,95.17

2,11.01

1,08.44

18.05

3,01.40

1,93.77

Balance as at
April 01, 2021

Impairment/
(charge)

Note 12A
Goodwill

Particulars
Goodwill
Total

180,25.25
180,25.25
Particulars

Goodwill
Total

Balance as at
April 01, 2020
180,25.25
180,25.25

Impairment/
(charge)
-

(₹ in lakhs)
Balance as at
March 31, 2022
180,25.25
180,25.25
Balance as at
March 31, 2021
180,25.25
180,25.25

As at March 31, 2022, goodwill of ₹ 180,25.25 lakhs has been allocated to the Used Vehicle Financing Business acquired which is the Cash Generating Unit (referred to as "CGU"). The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
has been determined based on value in use. Value in use has been determined based on future cash flows, after considering current economic conditions and trends, estimated future operating results, growth rates and anticipated
future economic conditions.
As at March 31, 2022, the estimated cash flows for a period of 5 years were developed using internal forecasts, and discount rate of 13.37% which is cost of equity derived based on Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM). The cash flows
beyond 5 years have been extrapolated assuming 6% growth rates. The management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions would not cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount of
the cash generating unit.
There is no revaluation or any other adjustment conducted in the reporting period and it's corresponding previous year. Hence, there will be no additional disclosure required.
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Note 12B
Intangible Assets

Particulars

Balance as at
April 01, 2021

Computer Software
Total

Particulars
Computer Software
Total

Gross Block
Additions
Deletions

2,69.50
2,69.50

-

Balance as at
April 01, 2020
2,68.74
2,68.74

Additions

Balance as at
March 31, 2022
-

2,69.50
2,69.50

1,94.71
1,94.71

-

Balance as at
March 31, 2021
2,69.50
2,69.50

Balance as at
April 01, 2020
1,38.91
1,38.91

Gross Block
Deletions

0.76
0.76

Balance as at
April 01, 2021

Note 13
Other non-financial assets
(₹ in lakhs)
Particulars
Deposits with statutory authorities
Prepaid expenses
Taxes recoverable and dues from government
Stamp Papers
Others
Total

As at
March 31, 2022
16.65
117.97
22,61.27
3,12.79
48.39
27,57.07

As at
March 31, 2021
16.65
1,19.62
22,05.19
2,60.21
1,56.50
27,58.17

(₹ in lakhs)
Accumulated amortisation
Net Block
Amortisation
Deletions
Balance as at March Balance as at March
31, 2022
31, 2022
55.88
55.88

-

2,50.59
2,50.59

18.91
18.91

Accumulated amortisation
Net Block
Amortisation
Deletions
Balance as at March Balance as at March
31, 2021
31, 2021
55.80
1,94.71
74.80
55.80
1,94.71
74.80
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Note 14
Derivative financial instruments - March 31, 2022
Notional
Amounts

Particulars
Currency derivatives
Forward exchange contracts

Fair Value
Assets

11,071.50

Total Derivative Financial Instruments
Derivative designated as hedge
Cash flow hedging
Total Derivative Financial Instruments

11,071.50

(₹ in lakhs)
Fair Value
Liabilities

Notional
Amounts

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Derivative financial instruments - March 31, 2021
Notional
Amounts

Particulars
Currency derivatives
Forward exchange contracts

Fair Value
Assets
-

Total Derivative Financial Instruments

-

Notional
Amounts
530,71.50

-

Derivative designated as hedge
Cash flow hedging:
Forward exchange contracts

-

Total Derivative Financial Instruments
Refer Note 54 on Financial Risk Manangement for maturity analysis of Derivative financial liabilities at March 31, 2022

-

(₹ in lakhs)
Fair Value
Liabilities
8,22.45
8,22.45

530,71.50

8,22.45
8,22.45

Note 15
Payables
(₹ in lakhs)
As at
As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Particulars
Trade Payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Subtotal
Other Payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Subtotal
Total

113.51
3,578.20
3,691.71
11,62.70

21,16.05
21,16.05
6,81.05

11,62.70
48,54.41

6,81.05
27,97.10

Note: Information in respect of micro enterprises and small enterprises to whom the Company owes dues (including interest nil), which are due during the year or outstanding as at the balance
sheet date and disclosed above as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis
of information available with the Company and relied upon by the auditors.
Trade Payables aging schedule
(₹ in lakhs)
As at March 31, 2022
Particulars

Not due

(i) MSME
(ii) Others
(iii) Disputed dues – MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others

Unbilled
8.65
8.65

Total

60.22
16,55.77
17,15.99

Less than 1
Year
53.28
16,18.45
16,71.73

1-2 Years
1,78.06
1,78.06

2-3 Years
51.56
51.56

More than 3
Years

Total

65.71
65.71

113.51
35,78.20
36,91.71
(₹ in lakhs)

As at March 31, 2021
Less than 1
Year

Particulars
Not due
(i) MSME
(ii) Others
(iii) Disputed dues – MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others
Total
Unbilled Dues as at March 31, 2022 is ₹ 17,16.00 lakhs and as at March 31, 2021 is ₹ 14,98.62 lakhs
x

1-2 Years

2-3 Years

More than 3
Years

Total

Unbilled
1,65.27
1,65.27

14,98.62
14,98.62

3,96.92
3,96.92

26.15
26.15

2.49
2.49

26.60
26.60

21,16.05
21,16.05
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Note 16
Debt securities (at amortised cost)
(₹ in lakhs)
As at
As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Particulars
i. Privately placed non-convertible debentures (unsecured)
ii. Commercial Paper (unsecured) (refer note i)
(Net of unamortised borrowing cost and discounting charges ₹ 62.40 lakhs; March 31,2021: ₹ 21,73.27 lakhs)

1586,69.55
299,37.60

989,44.34
1003,26.73

Total (A)

1886,07.15

1992,71.07

i. Debt securities in India
ii. Debt securities outside India
Total (B)

1886,07.15
1886,07.15

1992,71.07
1992,71.07

Terms of repayment of unsecured non convertible debentures:
From Balance sheet Date
Issued on private placement basis
Repayable on Maturity:
Maturing within 1 Year
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years
Total Face Value
Less: Unamortised borrowing cost
Total Amortised cost

As at
March 31, 2022
Interest Rate
Amount
Range

7.85% to 9.45%
7.06% to 7.97%

As at
March 31, 2021
Interest Rate
Amount
Range

292,50.00 9.45% to 9.45%
1319,08.68 7.85% to 9.45%
1611,58.68
24,89.13
1586,69.55

97,50.00
892,50.00
990,00.00
55.66
989,44.34

Note 17
Borrowings - Other than debt securities (at amortised cost)
Particulars

(₹ in lakhs)
As at
As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

(a) Term loans from banks#
- Secured (Refer Note (i) below)
- Unsecured
(b) Loans repayable on demand
i. from banks in INR (secured) (Refer Note (i) below)
ii. from banks in INR (unsecured)
Total (A)

3944,08.88
1749,24.64

3140,90.61
150,00.00

670,00.00
274,90.00
6638,23.52

1168,42.48
74,90.00
4534,23.09

i. Borrowings in India
ii. Borrowings outside India
Total (B)

6528,07.28
110,16.24
6638,23.52

4424,43.79
109,79.30
4534,23.09

Note:
i. Nature of security:
All receivables of the Company arising out of loan and trade advances;
All other book debts;
All receivables from pass through certificates, in which the Company has invested; and
Such other current assets as may be identified by the Company from time to time, and accepted by the relevant Lender / Security Trustee.
ii. The borrowings have not been guaranteed by directors or others.
ii. The Company has utilized all it's borrowings from Banks & Financial Institutions for the purpose they have been borrowed.
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Terms of repayment of unsecured commercial papers:

From Balance sheet Date
Repayable on Maturity:
Maturing within 1 Year

As at
March 31, 2022
Interest Rate Range
Amount
4.20% to 4.20%

Total Face Value
Less: Unamortised discounting charges
Total Amortised cost

300,00.00

(₹ in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2021
Interest Rate Range
Amount
5.50% to 5.85%

300,00.00
62.40
299,37.60

102500.00
102500.00
21,73.27
1003,26.73

Terms of repayment of secured term loans from banks:

From Balance sheet Date
1. Repayable on Maturity:
Maturing within 1 Year
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years
Total repayable on maturiy (A)
2. Repayable in Installments:
i. on quarterly basis
Maturing within 1 Year
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years
Maturing between 3 Years to 5 Years
Maturing beyond 5 Years
Subtotal (B)
ii. on half yearly basis
Maturing within 1 Year
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years
Maturing between 3 Years to 5 Years
Subtotal (C)
iii. on yearly basis
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years
Subtotal (D)
Total repayable on installments (D = B+C)

As at
March 31, 2022
Interest Rate Range
Amount

(₹ in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2021
Interest Rate Range
Amount

450,00.00
450,00.00

6.21% to 8.55%
7.75% to 8.45%

365,00.00
580,00.00
945,00.00

7.35% to 8.10%
7.25% to 8.10%
7.35% to 7.70%

780,04.67
1675,99.35
167,60.84
2623,64.86

7.55% to 8.95%
7.55% to 8.95%
7.55% to 7.70%

377,81.08
617,09.04
282,52.99
1277,43.10

7.45% to 8.40%
7.45% to 8.40%
7.45% to 7.50%

252,50.00
271,25.00
45,00.00
568,75.00

7.60% to 8.70%
7.65% to 8.70%
7.65% to 8.35%

242,50.00
428,75.00
140,00.00
811,25.00

6.50% to 6.50%

200,00.00
200,00.00
339,239.86

208,868.10

384,239.86
8,47.22
3833,92.64

303,368.10
2,56.79
3031,11.31

7.00% to 7.75%

Total term loans as per contractual terms (F = A+D)
Less: Unamortised borrowing cost
Total Amortised cost

-

Details of External Commercial Borrowings (USD)
From Balance sheet Date

As at
March 31, 2022
Interest Rate Range

1. Repayable on Maturity:
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years
Total repayable on maturiy (A)
Less: Unamortised borrowing cost
Total Amortised cost

7.90% to 7.90%

Amount
110,71.50
110,71.50
55.26
110,16.24

As at
March 31, 2021
Interest Rate Range
7.90%

Amount
110,71.50
110,71.50
92.20
109,79.30

Terms of repayment of unsecured term loans from banks:

From Balance sheet Date
1. Repayable on Maturity:
Maturing between 3 Years to 5 Years
Maturing within 1 Year
Total repayable on maturiy (A)
1. Repayable in Installments:
i. on half yearly basis
Maturing within 1 Year
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years
Total
ii. on yearly basis
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years
Maturing within 1 Year
Subtotal (B)
Total repayable on installments (C = A+B)

As at
March 31, 2022
Interest Rate Range
Amount
7.55% to 7.55%
7.30% to 7.30%

(₹ in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2021
Interest Rate Range
Amount

370,00.00
130,00.00
500,00.00

-

7.65% to 7.65%
7.65% to 7.65%

166,66.67
333,33.33
500,00.00

7.12% to 7.12%
7.12% to 7.12%

500,00.00
250,00.00
750,00.00
125,000.00

15,000.00

175,000.00
75.36
1749,24.64

15,000.00
150,00.00

Total term loans as per contractual terms (F = A+E)
Less: Unamortised borrowing cost
Total Amortised cost

7.85%

150,00.00
150,00.00
-

Terms of repayment of secured loans repayable on demand from banks :

From Balance sheet Date

As at
March 31, 2022
Interest Rate Range

Repayable on Maturity:
Maturing within 1 Year

6.40% to 7.15%

Total Face Value
Less: Unamortised discounting charges
Total Amortised cost

Amount
670,00.00

(₹ in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2021
Interest Rate Range

Amount

7.00% to 8.05%

1168,42.48

670,00.00
670,00.00

1168,42.48
1168,42.48

Terms of repayment of unsecured loans repayable on demand from banks :

From Balance sheet Date
Repayable on Maturity:
Maturing within 1 Year
Total Face Value
Less: Unamortised discounting charges
Total Amortised cost

As at
March 31, 2022
Interest Rate Range
Amount
6.25% to 6.85%

274,90.00
274,90.00
274,90.00

(₹ in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2021
Interest Rate Range
Amount
6.40%

74,90.00
74,90.00
74,90.00
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Note 18
Other financials liabilities
Particulars
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Others

As at
March 31, 2022
32,71.07
313,23.43
345,94.50

Total

(₹ in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2021
19,03.31
47,60.01
66,63.32

Note 19
Provisions
Particulars
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for Indirect Taxes
Provision for consumer disputes
Provision for expenses
Total

As at
March 31, 2022
2,06.32
14.58
11.62
1005.16
12,37.68

(₹ in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2021
2,23.97
14.58
11.62
813.94
10,64.11

Movement of provisions during the year as required by Ind AS - 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”
(a) Provision for Indirect taxes
Particulars
Opening Balance
Add : Provision during the year
Less : Utilisation/Reversal during the year
Closing Balance

As at
March 31, 2022
14.58
14.58

As at
March 31, 2021
14.58
14.58

As at
March 31, 2022
11.62
11.62

As at
March 31, 2021
11.68
8.62
(8.68)
11.62

As at
March 31, 2022
9,73.45
3,21.05

(₹ in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2021
6,09.17
4,98.71

(b) Provision for consumer disputes
Particulars
Opening Balance
Add : Provision during the year
Less : Utilisation/Reversal during the year
Closing Balance
Note 20
Other non-financial liabilities
Particulars
Statutory Dues
Others
Total

12,94.50

11,07.88
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Note 21
Equity Share Capital
(₹ in lakhs)
Particulars

As at March 31, 2022
Number

As at March 31, 2021
Number

₹

₹

Authorised
Equity shares of ₹ 100 each
Preference shares of ₹ 100 each (redeemable)

180,000,000
20,000,000
200,000,000

1800,00.00
200,00.00
2000,00.00

180,000,000
20,000,000
200,000,000

1800,00.00
200,00.00
2000,00.00

170,049,735
170,049,735

1700,49.74
1700,49.74

170,049,735
170,049,735

1700,49.74
1700,49.74

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up
Equity Shares of ₹ 100 each
Total
a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
(₹ in lakhs)
Particulars
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year
Shares Issued during the year
Shares outstanding at the end of the year

As at March 31, 2022
Number

As at March 31, 2021
₹

170,049,735
170,049,735

1700,49.74
1700,49.74

Number
170,049,735
170,049,735

₹

1700,49.74
1700,49.74

b) Details of shares held by holding company
As at March 31, 2022
Particulars

No. of shares

As at March 31, 2021

% of Issued Share Capital

170,049,735

TMF Holdings Limited

100%

No. of shares

% of Issued Share Capital

170,049,735

100%

c) Details of shares held by Promoters
As at March 31, 2022
Promotor Name
TMF Holdings Limited

No. of shares

As at March 31, 2021

%of total shares

170,049,735

100%

No. of shares

%of total shares

170,049,735

100%

There is no change in promotors shareholding during Financial year 2022 and 2021.
d) Terms / rights attached to equity shares:
The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company's residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time
to time subject to payment of dividend to preference shareholders. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. On winding up of the Company, the
holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of the equity shares held.
e) Information regarding issue of shares in the last five years
i. The Company has not issued any shares without payment being received in cash.
ii. The Company has not issued any bonus shares.
iii. The Company has not undertaken any buy-back of shares.
f) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting year
The company has not declared dividends at the end of the reporting year.
Note 21A
Instruments entirely equity in nature
(i) Perpetual Debt
Particulars
Balance as at beginning of the year
During the year
Balance as at end of the year

(₹ in lakhs)
As at March 31, 2022
Number
-

As at March 31, 2021
₹

Number
100,00.00
100,00.00

₹
-

-

The Company has issued 1000 subordinated, unlisted, unsecured, rated perpetual securities of face value of Rs. 10 Lakhs each in 8 series (“A to H”) during the year ended March 31, 2022. These securities are perpetual in nature with
no maturity or redemption and are callable only at the option of the Company. The coupon rate is 8.40% p.a. with a step up provision of 100 bps over the coupon rate, if the securities are not called by the Company at the end of 10
years from the date of allotment. The payment of any Coupon may be cancelled or suspended at the discretion of the Board of Directors.
The Coupon on the these securities shall not be cumulative except where the Company shall not be liable to pay Coupon and may defer the payment of Coupon, if
i. it's capital to risk assets ratio (“CRAR”) is below the minimum regulatory requirement prescribed by RBI; or
ii. the impact of such payment results in the Comapny’s CRAR falling below or remaining below the minimum regulatory requirement prescribed by Reserve Bank of India;
As these securities are perpetual in nature and the Company does not have any redemption obligation, these have been classified as equity.

Note 21B
(I) Other components of equity
(1) The movement of Cost of Hedging Reserve is as follows :Particulars
Balance at the beginning of the year
Gain/(loss) recognised on cash flow hedges - Gain/(Loss)
Income tax relating to Gain/(loss) recognised on cash flow hedges - Gain/(Loss)
Gain/(loss) reclassified to profit or loss
Income tax relating to gain/loss recognised to profit or loss
Balance at the end of the year
(2) The movement of Hedging Reserve is as follows :Particulars
Balance at the beginning of the year
Gain/(loss) recognised on cash flow hedges - Gain/(Loss)
Gain/(loss) reclassified to profit or loss
Balance at the end of the year

Year ended March 31, 2022
14.58
(14.58)
-

Year ended March 31, 2022
(1.44)
1.44
-

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Year ended March 31, 2021
(6,63.48)
6,78.06
14.58
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Year ended March 31, 2021
(1,58.96)
1,57.52
(1.44)
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(3) The movement of Debt instruments through other comprehensive income is as follows:Particulars
Balance at the beginning of the year
Gain/(loss) recognised on debt instrument
Gain/(loss) reclassified to profit or loss
Balance at the end of the year
(4) Summary of Other components of equity :Particulars
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income
Cost of hedging reserve
Hedging Reserve
Debt instruments through other comprehensive income
Total
(II) Notes to reserves

Year ended March 31, 2022
8,183.19
8,183.19

Year ended March 31, 2022

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Year ended March 31, 2021
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Year ended March 31, 2021

81,83.19

14.58
(1.44)

81,83.19

13.14

a) Special reserve
As per Section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 every non-banking financial company shall create a reserve fund and transfer therein a sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the Statement
of Profit and Loss and before any dividend is declared. No appropriation of any sum from the reserve fund shall be made by the non-banking financial company except for the purpose as may be specified by the Reserve Bank of India
from time to time and every such appropriation shall be reported to the Reserve Bank of India within twenty-one days from the date of such withdrawal.

b) Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profits / (losses) that the Company has earned till date.
c) Hedging Reserve through OCI
It represents the effective portion of the fair value of forward contracts, designated as cash flow hedge.
d) Cost of hedge reserve
Fair value gain/(loss) attributable to cost of hedge on all financials instruments designated in cash flow hedge relationship are accumulated in cost of hedge reserve.
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Note 22
Interest Income
(₹ in lakhs)
Particulars
On Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost
Interest on Loans
Interest income from investments
Interest on deposits with Banks
Other interest Income
On Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit & Loss
Interest income from investments
On Financial Assets measured at FVOCI
Interest on Loans
Total

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

844,19.22
441.37
8,06.04
6.00

774,65.04
8,45.93
3,05.09

8,10.06

2,72.82

51,22.35
916,05.04

788,88.88

Note 23
Net gain on fair value changes
(₹ in lakhs)
Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

17,56.78

23,48.02

Total
Fair Value changes:
- Realised
- Unrealised
Total

17,56.78

23,48.02

19,54.89
(198.11)
17,56.78

22,91.57
56.45
23,48.02

Note 24
Other Income
(₹ in lakhs)
Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Support services income
Balances written back
Miscellaneous income

4,51.52
8.18
296.67

3,08.06
457.04
402.89

Total

7,56.37

11,67.99

Note 25
Finance costs (on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost)
(₹ in lakhs)
Particulars
Interest on Borrowings
Interest on Debt Securities
Interest on Subordinated Liabilities
Other Finance Charges
Total

For the year ended
March 31, 2022
360,24.23
138,22.73
33.30
498,80.26

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
338,60.37
87,62.43
3,98.71
72.50
430,94.01
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Note 26
Impairment on financial instruments and other assets
(₹ in lakhs)
Particulars
a. Impairment on financial assets
Loans (at amortised cost)
-Allowance for loan losses
-Loans written off (net of recoveries of ₹ 2,076.29 lakhs and ₹ 746.34 lakhs for the year ended March
31, 2021)
b. Loans (at FVOCI)
-Allowance for loan losses
c. Impairment on non financial assets
-Allowance for doubtful loans and advances (others)
Total

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

100,39.28

39,06.16

63,11.61

75,68.87

320.84

-

1.00
166,72.73

2.11
114,77.14

Note 27
Employee Benefits Expenses
(₹ in lakhs)
Particulars
Salaries
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses
Total

For the year ended
March 31, 2022
46,63.45
2,48.06
181.07
50,92.58

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
36,08.69
2,16.75
131.65
39,57.09

Note 28
Other expenses
(₹ in lakhs)
Particulars

Rent, taxes and energy costs
Repairs and maintenance
CSR Expense
Communication costs
Printing and stationery
Advertisement and publicity
Directors' fees, allowances and expenses
Auditor's fees and expenses (Refer Note (i) below)(refer note (i))
Legal and professional charges
Insurance
Commission
Service provider fees
Cenvat credit reversal
Travelling and Conveyance
Loss on sale of assets
Others
Total

For the year ended
March 31, 2022
85.00
0.74
210.37
20.52
19.98
8.70
57.70
95.78
8,30.22
7.62
359.20
50,99.05
10,50.49
79.74
1.42
12,44.05
91,70.58

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
109.19
0.82
17.40
10.13
9.76
74.90
46.13
8,79.95
5.53
189.27
35,07.41
6,74.95
24.56
11,84.52
67,34.52

(i) Auditors’ remuneration (excluding Goods and Service Tax)*:
Particulars
As auditors - statutory audit
Taxation matters
For other services
Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses
Total
*Includes Auditors' remuneration of ₹ 64.99 lakhs paid to erstwhile auditor

For the year ended
March 31, 2022
82.99
2.40
8.30
2.09
95.78

(₹ in lakhs)
For the year ended
March 31, 2021
30.46
2.40
11.80
1.47
46.13
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(ii) Corporate social responsibility
Corporate social responsibility expenses are spent towards various schemes of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as prescribed under Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013. No amount has been spent on construction / acquisition of an asset of the Company. The prescribed CSR expenditure required to be
spent in the year 2021-22 as per the Companies Act, 2013 is ₹ 210.37 lakhs (₹ Nil in 2020-21) in view of average net profits of the Company being ₹ 10,518.34
lakhs under section 198 of the Act for three immediately preceding financial years. The Board approved spent for the year 2021-22 was ₹ 210.37 lakhs (₹ Nil
lakhs in 2020-21) and amount actually spent was ₹ 148.38 lakhs (₹ Nil lakhs in 2020-21). There were no CSR transactions with or contributions to any related
parties listed in Note 47.
Particulars
Amount required to be spent by the company during the year
Amount of expenditure incurred
Excess/(Shortfall) at the end of the year (Refer Note 1)
Total of previous years excess/(shortfall)

For the year ended
March 31, 2022
210.37
148.38
(61.99)
-

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
-

Reason for shortfall
During financial year ended March 31, 2022, the Company could not spent entire amount due to pandemic, project complexities and delay in launch of the
project.
Nature of CSR activities
During financial year ended March 31, 2022, the Company conducted financial literacy & road safety to driver community (Project Akanksha), Mobile health
camps for the driver community (Project Suraksha) and program consisting of holistic development & livelihood/youth skilling program for adolescent girls
(Project Uddan).
For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Details of related party transactions
i. Contribution to a trust controlled by the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant
Accounting Standard
ii. Any other, please specify

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
-

-

-

-

Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligation
Particulars
i. Provision at the beginning of the year
ii. Additional provision made during the year
iii. Provision reversed during the year
iv. Provision resulted in expenditure during the year
v. Provision at the end of the year

For the year ended
March 31, 2022
-

Note 1:
1. At March 31, 2022, unspend amount has been deposited into an escrow account with scheduled bank within due date.

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
-
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Note 29
Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per equity share are computed in accordance with Ind AS 33 – Earnings per share. Basic earnings per equity share are computed by dividing net profit after tax
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax as adjusted for
dividend related to dilutive potential equity shares by the weighted average number of equity shares and weighted average number of dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during
the year. The following table sets forth, for the year indicated, the computation of earnings per share.
(₹ in lakhs)
For the year ended March For the year ended March
31, 2022
31, 2021

Particulars
Basic
Weighted average no. of equity shares outstanding
Net profit attributable to equity share holders
Basic earnings per share (₹)
Diluted
Weighted average no. of equity shares outstanding
Net profit attributable to equity share holders
Diluted earnings per share (₹)
Face value per share (₹)

170,049,735
191,93.87
11.29

170,049,735
193,91.27
11.40

170,049,735
191,93.87
11.29
100

170,049,735
193,91.27
11.40
100

Note 30
Segment
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of financing and there are no separate reportable operating segments identified as per the Ind AS 108 - Segment Reporting.
Note 31
Title deed of immoveable properties
The Company does not hold any immoveable property, hence, reporting of title deed is not applicable.
Note 32
Contingent liabilities and commitments
1. Contingent liabilities to the extent not provided for:
Description of claims and assertions where a potential loss is possible, but not probable is reported below:
A. Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts:
(₹ in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2022

Particulars

4,23.93

In respect of consumer disputes

As at
March 31, 2021
4,87.51

Total
4,23.93
4,87.51
The Company’s pending litigations comprise of claims against the Company primarily by the customers and proceedings pending with Income Tax and other authorities. The Company has
reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed the contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial
statements. The amount of provisions / contingent liabilities is based on management’s estimate, and no significant liability is expected to arise out of the same.
2. Commitments:
Loan commitment towards vehicle financing ₹ 20,21.26 lakhs (as at March 31, 2021: ₹ 8,22.83 lakhs)
Note 33
The company have loans and advances outstanding to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties, that are repayable on demand or without specifiy any terms of repayment.
Particulars

Promoter
Directors
KMPs
Related parties

(₹ in lakhs)
For the year ended March 31, 2022
For the year ended March 31, 2021
Amount of loan or advance Percentage to the total Amount of loan or advance Percentage to the total
in the nature of loan Loans and Advances in the in the nature of loan Loans and Advances in the
outstanding
nature of loans
outstanding
nature of loans
145.00
0.02%
145
0.02%

Note 34
Capital Work in Progress & Intangible Assets under Development amount to ₹ Nil as at March 31,2022 and March 31, 2021
Note 35
Benami Property
There is no proceedings initiated/pending against the company for holding benami property as at March 31, 2022
Note 36
Borrowings from banks or financial institutions
The companies borrows from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of currents assets . Quarterly/returns filed by the company are in agreement in the books of accounts

Note 37
Wilful Defaulter
The Company has not been declared as Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any lender.
Note 38
Relationship with Struck off Companies
During Financial Year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the company did not have any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or
section 560 of Companies Act,1956.
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Note 39
Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
As at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, there is no charges or satisfaction with charge yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.
Note 40
Compliance with number of layers of companies
As per Companies (Restriction on number of layers ) Rules 2017,Non-Banking Finanical Companies are exempted from restriction on number of layers.
Note 41
Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:
I. The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.
II. The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise)
that the company shall(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
Note 42
Undisclosed Income
Undisclosed Income Transaction Not Recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessment during the finanical year ended March,31
2022 and March 31, 2021.
Note 43
Crypto Currency
The company has not traded /Invested in crypto currency or virtual currency for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.
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Note 44
Reconciliation of Movement in Borrowings to cash flows from financing activities
(₹ in lakhs)
Amortisation /
Exchange
As at March
Particulars
EIR
difference
31, 2022
adjustments
Debt securities
1992,71.07
(149,45.70) 42,81.78
1886,07.15
Borrowings (Other than debt securities)
4534,23.09
2099,67.08
1,57.52
275.82
6638,23.51
Total
6526,94.16
1950,21.38
1,57.52
45,57.60
8524,30.66
Note: Debt securities includes commercial papers for which the discounting charges paid of Rs. 6,248.12 lakhs on the repayment date is shown in the finance
cost paid in cash flow statement.
(₹ in lakhs)
As at April 01,
Amortisation /
Exchange
As at March
Particulars
2020
Cash flows (net)
EIR
difference
31, 2021
adjustments
Debt securities
1001,20.47
938,91.60
52,59.00
1992,71.07
Borrowings (Other than debt securities)
3789,81.61
745,31.25
(1,57.52)
67.75
4534,23.09
Subordinated liabilities
99,76.52
(100,00.00)
23.48
Total
4890,78.60
1584,22.85
(1,57.52)
53,50.23
6526,94.16
Note: Debt securities includes commercial papers for which the discounting charges paid of Rs. 36,74.84 lakhs on the repayment date is shown in the finance
cost paid in cash flow statement.
As at April 01,
2021
Cash flows (net)

Note 45
Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities
The table below shows the maturity analysis of assets and liabilities according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled:
(₹ in lakhs)
Particulars
I
1
(a)
(b)
(c)
i.
ii.
(d)
(e)
(f)

ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Loans
Investments
Other financial assets

2
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net)
Deferred tax assets (net) and MAT Credit
Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Other non-financial assets

3

Assets Held for Sale
Total Assets

II
1
(a)
(a)
i.
ii.
(b)
(c)
(e)

LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments(liability)
Payables
Trade payables
Other payables
Debt securities
Borrowings (Other than debt securities)
Other financials liabilities

2
(a)
(b)
(c)

Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net)
Provisions
Other non-financial liabilities
Total Liabilities
Net

Current

1900,52.91
-

31-Mar-22
Non current

-

Total

Current

1900,52.91
-

810,29.46
50,00.00

31-Mar-21
Non current

-

Total

810,29.46
50,00.00

17.02
78,04.39
5125,58.78
5855.00
66,61.61

2959,50.37
394,97.23
78.13

17.02
78,04.39
8085,09.15
453,52.23
67,39.74

57,60.22
2873,57.26
53.81
13,99.43

3937,43.83
164,48.11
94.78

57,60.22
6811,01.09
165,01.92
14,94.21

27,40.42

17,49.92
11,30.80
1,49.18
180,25.25
18.91
16.65

17,49.92
11,30.80
1,49.18
180,25.25
18.91
27,57.07

27,41.53

42,33.77
19,51.42
1,93.77
180,25.25
74.79
16.65

42,33.77
19,51.42
1,93.77
180,25.25
,74.79
27,58.18

23,39.76
7280,29.89

-

3566,16.44

-

23,39.76
10846,46.33

-

3833,41.71

8,22.45

4347,82.37

-

8181,24.08

8,22.45

34,89.42
11,62.70
591,49.15
2524,11.32
337,28.48

2,02.29
1294,58.00
4114,12.18
8,66.02

36,91.71
11,62.70
1886,07.15
6638,23.50
345,94.50

28,24.90
6,81.05
1100,64.77
2378,55.20
53,38.91

1,05.09
892,06.30
2155,67.89
13,24.41

29,29.99
6,81.05
1992,71.07
4534,23.09
66,63.32

115.89
1090.34
12,94.50

1,47.34
-

115.89
12,37.68
12,94.50

82.40
24.61
11,07.88

2,25.56
-

,82.40
2,50.17
11,07.88

3524,41.80
3755,88.09

5420,85.83
(1854,69.39)

8945,27.63
1901,18.70

3588,02.17
245,39.54

3064,29.25
1283,53.12

6652,31.42
1528,92.66

TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED (CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
Note 46
Employee benefit obligations
a) Defined contribution plans
The Company has defined contribution plan in the form of contributions made to provident fund and superannuation funds for the qualifying employees.
The expense recognised during the year in the Statement of Profit and Loss towards defined contribution plan is ` 176.16 lakhs (Previous year's `
1,59.27 lakhs ).
b) Defined benefit plans
The gratuity defined benefit plan is a funded plan and the Company makes contributions to the Tata Motors Finance Limited Gratuity Trusts for funding
the defined benefit gratuity plan for qualifying employees. The plan provides for a lumpsum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in
employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 to 30 days salary payable for each completed year of service. Vesting
occurs upon completion of five years of service.
The following table sets out the funded and unfunded status and the amounts recognised in the financial statements for the gratuity plans.
(₹ in lakhs)
As at March 31
a) Changes in defined benefit obligations
2022
2021
Defined benefit obligation, beginning of the year
5,25.17
4,58.80
Current service cost
60.48
52.56
Interest cost
35.43
28.55
Remeasurement (gains) / losses
Actuarial (gain) /losses arising from change in financial assumptions
(4.16)
Actuarial (gain) /losses arising from change in demographic assumptions
10.66
Actuarial (gain) /losses arising from change in experience adjustments
(1.07)
75.29
Benefits paid from plan assets
(23.48)
(90.03)
Defined benefit obligation
6,03.03
5,25.17

b) Changes in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of the year
Interest cost
Remeasurement (gains) / losses
Return on plan assets, (excluding amount included in net Interest expense)
Employer's contribution
Benefits paid
Fair value of plan assets

c) Amount recognised in balance sheet consist off
Present value of defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Net Assets/ (Liability)

d) Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
Current Service Cost
Interest on Defined Benefit Obligations (Net)
Net Charge to the Statement of Profit and Loss

e) Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income(OCI) for the Year:
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability:
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest (expense)/income
Actuarial gains/(losses) arising from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial gains/(losses) arising from changes in financial assumptions
Actuarial gains/(losses) arising from changes in experience adjustments on plan liabilities
Impact on the other comprehensive income / (loss)

(₹ in lakhs)
As at March 31
2022
2021
4,40.17
4,98.58
32.64
31.30
1.69
89.37
(23.48)
5,40.39

0.32
(90.03)
4,40.17

(₹ in lakhs)
As at March 31
2022
2021
(6,03.03)
(5,25.17)
5,40.39
4,40.17
(62.64)
(85.00)
(₹ in lakhs)
As at March 31
2022
2021
60.48
52.56
(2.75)
2.79
63.27
49.81
(₹ in lakhs)
As at March 31
2022
2021
1.69
(10.66)
4.16
1.07
(3.74)

0.32
(75.29)
(74.97)
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f) The fair value of Company’s Gratuity plan asset by category

As at
March 31, 2022

Asset Category
Insurer managed funds
- Insurer Managed Funds (unquoted)

As at
March 31, 2021

100%

100%

The Company’s policy is driven by considerations of maximizing returns while ensuring credit quality of the debt instruments. The asset allocation for
plan assets is determined based on investment criteria prescribed under the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961, and is also subject to other exposure
limitations. The Company evaluates the risks, transaction costs and liquidity for potential investments. To measure plan asset performance, the
Company compares actual returns for each asset category with published benchmarks.

g) The assumptions used in accounting for the gratuity plans are set out below:
Discount rate
Expected return on plan assets
Salary Escalation rate
Mortality Tables
Total

As at
March 31, 2022
7.10%
7.10%
8% for first Year , 7%
thereafter

As at
March 31, 2021
6.90%
6.90%
7.00%

Indian Assured Lives mortality (2006-08) Ult

(a) Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of the
obligations.
(b) The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors.

h) The maturity profile of defined benefit obligation are set out below:
Within next 12 months (next annual reporting period)
Between 1 and 5 years
Between 5 and 9 years
10 years and above

i) Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions:
100 bps increase in discount rate
100 bps decrease in discount rate
100 bps increase in salary escalation rate
100 bps decrease in salary escalation rate

As at
March 31, 2022
51.52
2,46.46
5,19.16
-

(₹ in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2021
41.81
2,52.71
3,75.85
-

As at
March 31, 2022
(44.24)
50.15
49.62
(44.56)

(₹ in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2021
(37.30)
42.11
41.71
(37.64)

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur,
and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the previous year.
j) Weighted Average Duration of Defined Benefit obligation:
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation

k) The best estimate of the expected Contribution for the next year:
The Company expected contribution to the funded gratuity plans in financial year 2022-23.

As at
March 31, 2022
8.01 Years

As at
March 31, 2021
7.99 years
(₹ in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2022
51.52

l) Risk Exposure
Through its gratuity defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below :
Investment Risk: If future investment returns on assets are lower than assumed in valuation, the scheme’s assets will be lower, and the funding level
higher, than expected.
Change in bond yields: A decrease in yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the plans’ bond
holdings.
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Note 47
Related party disclosures
1 Related parties and their relationship (as defined under IndAS-24 Related Party Disclosures)
A.

Parties where the control exists:
- Ultimate Holding Company: Tata Motors Limited
- Holding Company: TMF Holdings Limited

B. Other Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the period end:
(i) Fellow subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements within the group
Tata Motors Finance Limited
Tata Technologies Limited
TML Business Services Limited (formerly known as Concorde Motors (India) Limited)
Tata Precision Industries (India) Limited
Tata Motors Passenger Vehicle Limited
Loginomic Tech Solutions Private Limited (“TruckEasy”)
Tata Marcopolo Motors Limited
(ii) Tata Sons and its subsidiaries and joint arrangements
Tata Sons Private Limited
Tata Consultancy Services Limited
Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited
(iii) Post Employment Benefit Plans:
Tata Motors Finance Limited Employees Gratuity Fund
C.

Key management personnel:
Mr. Nasser Munjee - Chairman and Independent Director (w.e.f. June 09, 2020)
Ms. Vedika Bhandarkar - Independent Director
Mr. P. B. Balaji - Non-Executive Director
Mr. R. T. Wasan - Non-Executive Director (upto June 23, 2020)
Mr. Shyam Mani - Non Executive Director
Mr. P S Jayakumar - Independent, Additional Director (w.e.f. October 12, 2020)
Mrs. Varsha Purandare - Independent, Additional Director (w.e.f. September 14, 2021)
Mr. Rohit Sarda - Chief Financial Officer (Up to July 31, 2020)
Mr. Amit Mittal - Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. August 01, 2020)
Mr. Paras Jha - Manager (as defined under Companies Act, 2013) (Up to July 31, 2020)
Mr. Anindya Dhar - Manager (as defined under Companies Act, 2013) (w.e.f. August 1, 2020)

2

The following table summarizes related-party transaction for the year ended and balances as at March 31, 2022
(₹ in lakhs)
Particulars
a) Transactions during the period
Loans and advances taken / availed
Loans and advances repaid
Interest income on loans and investments
Dividend income
Other income
Expenses for support services (incl. reimbursement of
expenses)
Interest Expenses
Other expenses
Rent expenses

Ultimate Holding
company
916.71
7.61
14.20
-

Holding company
148,500.00
148,500.00
2,292.19
87.00

Other related parties

Total

12,50.00
12,50.00
353.21
1,10.23
5.31

1497,50.00
1497,50.00
12,69.92
1,10.23
12.92

36,34.11

36,34.11

1.01
14,59.41
-

2293.21
14,73.61
87.00

b) Balances as at
145.00
145.00
Receivable - loans and Advances
(95.00)
(95.00)
Provision on doubtful loans*
10.57
73,71.21
73,81.78
Other Receivables
32.08
1.41
2,99.52
3,33.02
Other Payables
* Provision for doubtful debts based on expected credit losses was recognised on the receivables owed by related parties amounting to Rs. 95.00 lakhs.
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Note 47
Related party disclosures
The following table summarizes related-party transaction for the year ended and balances as at March 31, 2021
(₹ in lakhs)
Ultimate Holding
company

Particulars
a) Transactions during the period
Loans and advances taken / availed
Loans and advances repaid
Loans and advances given
Loans and advances recovered
Recoveries towards gratuity from trust
Interest income on loans and investments
Expenses for support services (incl. reimbursement of
expenses)
Interest Expenses
Rent expenses
Purchase of fixed assets

179.31
28.99
-

Holding company
400,00.00
500,00.00
390,00.00
500,00.00
2,84.82
4,99.97
102.66
-

Other related parties

Total

20,00.00
20,00.00
40,00.00
40,00.00
1,36.77
218.35

420,00.00
520,00.00
430,00.00
540,00.00
1,36.77
6,82.48

3960.32

39,89.31

,8.55
6.50

5,08.52
102.66
6.50

b) Balances as at
1,45.00
1,45.00
Receivable - loans and Advances
(95.00)
(95.00)
Provision on doubtful loans*
57,83.69
57,83.69
Other Receivables
6.75
3,60.26
3,67.01
Other Payables
* Provision for doubtful debts based on expected credit losses was recognised on the receivables owed by related parties amounting to ₹ 95.00 lakhs.

3

Key management personnel remuneration
Particulars
Short term employee benefits (refer note below)

(₹ in lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended March
March 31, 2022
31, 2021
57.70
55.90

Note:
1. Expenses towards provision for gratuity and leave encashment which are determined actuarial basis at an overall Company level are not included in
the above information.
2. Includes sitting fees paid to non-executive directors for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
Terms & Conditions of transaction with Realted Parties:
The transaction with related parties are made in the normal course of business and on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arms' length transactions.
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Note 48
Additional disclosures given in terms of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systemically Important Non Deposit Taking Company and Deposit Taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (as amended)
Additional disclosures of current and comparative years given below are based on Ind AS. We have made separate disclosures as per RBI regulations wherever the same differs from Ind AS.
48A. Asset Liability Maturity Pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities
(₹ in lakhs)
Particulars

S.
No.

1
2

Deposits
Advances

Financial year
ended

Over 1 month
Over 2
Over 3
Over 15 days
Over 6 months Over 1 year & Over 3 years &
up to 2
months up to month & up
Over 5 years
to 1 month
& up to 1 year up to 3 years up to 5 years
months
3 months
to 6 months

Over 7 days
to 15 days

Up to 7 days

Total

March 31, 2022
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2022
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2022
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2022

980,00.00
64,89.21
95,15.23
29702.23
,53.81
-

50,00.00
77,03.15
36,47.18
-

124,54.85
126,94.35
56,34.34

1040,06.49
635,08.89
28,05.65

332,47.76
242,84.78
34,00.00
134,23.56

525,04.38
518,06.93
535,67.12

1088,28.28
981,74.44
17,50.00
1765,94.15

3049,61.64
2912,75.08
59,48.11
3905,81.88

1457,82.23
872,77.79
212,16.82

325,29.80
389,16.44
105,00.00
105,00.00
-

980,00.00
50,00.00
8085,07.80
6811,01.11
453,52.23
165,01.92
6638,23.51

3

Investments

4

Borrowings from banks / financial institutions
(Term loans repayable on demand )

March 31, 2021

-

45,00.00

16,55.86

35,77.65

138,00.89

147,11.77

1995,05.34

1734,71.25

422,00.33

-

4534,23.09

Market borrowings (Privately placed non March 31, 2022
convertible debentures and commercial papers)
March 31, 2021
[Refer: Note 2 below]

-

-

299,37.60

-

-

-

291,09.00

1295,60.55

-

-

1886,07.15

5

-

249,66.24

249,40.05

-

-

-

601,34.78

892,30.00

-

-

1992,71.07

Notes:
1 Deposit is in the form of Fixed Deposits with Banks.
2 Borrowings does not include Inter Corporate Deposits.
3 Market Borrowings includes Non convertible debentures and commercial papers other than those subcribed by banks.
48B. Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR)
The ratios calculated in accordance with the guidelines of the Reserve Bank of India, are as under:
S.No.
1
2
3
4
5

Particulars
CRAR (%)
CRAR - Tier I capital (%)
CRAR - Tier II capital (%)
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-II
Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

20.39%
20.10%
0.29%
10000.00

20.70%
19.81%
0.89%
-
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Note 49
Additional disclosures given in terms of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systemically Important Non Deposit Taking Company and Deposit Taking
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (as amended)
49C. Disclosure of restructured advances
For the financial year ended March 31, 2022
Type of Restructuring =>
Sr.
No. Asset Classification =>

(₹ in lakhs)
Others
Standard Sub-standard Doubtful

No. of Borrowers
Amount Outstanding
Provision Amount
No. of Borrowers
2 Fresh restructuring during the year 2021 - 2022
Amount Outstanding
Provision Amount
No. of Borrowers
3 Upgradations to restructured standard category during the financial year Amount Outstanding
Provision Amount
1

Restructured accounts as on April 1, 2021
[opening figures]

No. of Borrowers
Restructured standard advances which cease to attract higher
provisioning and / or additional risk weight at the end of the financial
Amount Outstanding
4
year and hence need not be shown as restructured standard advances at
Provision Amount
the beginning of the next financial year
5 Down gradations of restructured accounts during the financial year

6 Write offs of restructured accounts during the financial year

7 Recovery from restructured accounts during the financial year

8 Sale of restructured accounts during the financial year

9

Restructured accounts as on March 31, 2022
[closing figures]

No. of Borrowers
Amount Outstanding
Provision Amount
No. of Borrowers
Amount Outstanding
Provision Amount
No. of Borrowers
Amount Outstanding
Provision Amount
No. of Borrowers
Amount Outstanding
Provision Amount
No. of Borrowers
Amount Outstanding
Provision Amount

For the financial year ended March 31, 2021
Sr. Type of Restructuring =>
No. Asset Classification =>

Restructured standard advances which cease to attract higher provisioning No. of Borrowers
and / or additional risk weight at the end of the financial year and hence
Amount Outstanding
need not be shown as restructured standard advances at the beginning of
Provision Amount
the next financial year

No. of Borrowers
Amount Outstanding
Provision Amount
No. of Borrowers
Amount Outstanding
Provision Amount
No. of Borrowers
Amount Outstanding
Provision Amount
No. of Borrowers
Amount Outstanding
Provision Amount
No. of Borrowers
Amount Outstanding
Provision Amount

5 Down gradations of restructured accounts during the financial year

6 Write offs of restructured accounts during the financial year

7 Recovery from restructured accounts during the financial year

8 Sale of restructured accounts during the financial year

9

Restructured accounts as on March 31, 2021
[closing figures]

2.00
583.69
132.50
(1.00)
(406.91)
(92.35)

13.00
434.92
98.00
-

-

Total
15.00
1018.61
230.50
(62.97)
(74.54)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1.00
343.94
17.81

(1.00)
(5.50)
(1.28)
(171.28)
(38.87)
-

1.00
3.53
1.07
(11.62)
(2.71)
(2.00)
(53.46)
(22.35)
12.00
373.37
74.01

-

(1.97)
(0.21)
(11.62)
(2.71)
(2.00)
(224.74)
(61.22)
13.00
717.31
91.82
(₹ in lakhs)

No. of Borrowers
Restructured accounts as on April 1, 2020
1
Amount Outstanding
[opening figures]
Provision Amount
No. of Borrowers
2 Fresh restructuring during the year 2020 - 2021
Amount Outstanding
Provision Amount
No. of Borrowers
3 Upgradations to restructured standard category during the financial year Amount Outstanding
Provision Amount
4

1.00
343.94
17.81

Loss

Others
Standard Sub-standard Doubtful
2.00
0.01
0.01
2.00
13.00
583.69
434.92
132.50
98.00
-

Loss
-

Total
2.00
0.01
0.01
15.00
1018.61
230.50
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2.00
583.69
132.50

(2.00)
(0.01)
(0.01)
13.00
434.92
98.00

-

(2.00)
(0.01)
(0.01)
15.00
1018.61
230.50

The Company has not done any restructuring under CDR mechanism and SME Debt restructuring mechanism and hence no disclosure is required for same.
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Note 50
Additional disclosures given in terms of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systemically Important Non Deposit Taking Company and Deposit Taking
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (as amended)
50D. Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head 'Expenditure' in the Statement of Profit and Loss
(₹ in lakhs)
For the year ended March 31,
2022
103,60.12
103,60.12
1.00

S.
Particulars
No.
1 Provision for doubtful Loans
2 Provision on consumer disputes
3 Provision for doubtful loans and advances (others)

For the year ended March 31, 2021
39,06.16

39,06.16
(0.06)
2.11

50E. Investments
S.
No.
1
(i)
(a)
(b)
(ii)
(a)
(b)
(iii)
(a)
(b)
2
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

As at
March 31, 2022

Particulars
Value of investments
Gross value of investments
In India
Outside India
Provision for depreciation
In India
Outside India
Net value of investments
In India
Outside India
Movement of provisions held towards depreciation of investments
Opening balance
Add: Provisions made during the year
Less: Utilised
Closing balance

45,352.23
45,352.23
-

(₹ in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2021

16,501.92
16,501.92
-

-

-

50F. Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migrations of ratings in respect of all credit facilities and debt instruments during the year:

S.
No.

Rating agency

Financial
year ended

Long-term bank
facilities

31-Mar-22 CRISIL AA-/ STABLE
1 CRISIL

2 ICRA

31-Mar-21
01-Apr-17

AA-/Stable
AA/Positive

31-Mar-22

NA

31-Mar-21
01-Apr-17

NA
NA

31-Mar-22 CARE AA-/ STABLE
3 CARE

31-Mar-21
01-Apr-17

AA-/Stable
NA

Short-term
bank facilities
NA
NA
A1 +
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA

Instruments
Secured NonUnsecured
convertible
subordinated
debentures
Tier II NCDs
CRISIL AA-/
CRISIL AA-/
STABLE
STABLE
AA-/Stable
AA-/Stable
AA/Positive
AA/Positive
ICRA AA- /
NA
STABLE
NA
AA-/Stable
NA
AA/Positive
CARE AA-/
CARE AA-/
STABLE
STABLE
AA-/Stable
AA-/Stable
NA
AA+/Stable

Commercial
papers

Perpetual debt

CRISIL A1+

CRISIL A / STABLE

A1+
A1 +

NA
NA

ICRA A1+

ICRA A / STABLE

A1+
NA

A/Stable
A+/Positive

CARE A1+

CARE A / STABLE

A1+
AA+/Stable

A/Stable
A1+

50G. Concentration of advances
S.
Particulars
No.
1 Total advances to twenty largest borrowers / customer
2 Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the applicable NBFC

As at
March 31, 2022
1348,35.07
16.07%

(₹ in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2021
1150,91.49
16.42%

As at
March 31, 2022
1348,35.07
16.07%

(₹ in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2021
1150,91.49
16.42%

50H. Concentration of exposures
S.
Particulars
No.
1 Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customer
2 Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customer to total exposure of the NBFC on borrowers /
customer

TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED (CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
Note 50
Additional disclosures given in terms of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systemically Important Non Deposit Taking Company and Deposit Taking
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (as amended)
50I. Concentration of NPAs
(₹ in lakhs)
S.
As at
As at
Particulars
No.
March 31, 2022
March 31, 2021
1 Total exposure to top four NPA accounts
160,19.49
28,07.13
50J. Sector-wise NPAs (Percentage of NPAs to total advances in that sector)
S.
As at
Sector
No.
March 31, 2022
1 Agriculture and allied activities
2 MSME
3 Corporate borrowers
4.89%
4 Services
5 Unsecured personal loans
6 Auto loans
7.84%
7 Other personal loans
Note:
Percentage of Gross NPA to total advances at company level as per RBI regulations for current and comparative years are as below :March 31, 2022 : 7.38%, March 31, 2021 : 3.52%

As at
March 31, 2021
0.08%
4.18%
-

50K. Customer complaints
S.
No.
1
2
3
4

Particulars
No of complaints pending at the beginning of the year
No of complaints received during the year
No of complaints redressed during the year
No of complaints pending at the end of the year

As at
March 31, 2022
33
1230
1203
60

(Numbers)
As at
March 31, 2021
56
934
957
33

As at
March 31, 2022
4.94%

(₹ in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2021
2.97%

50L. Movement of NPAs
S.
No.
1
2
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
3
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
4
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

Particulars
Net NPAs to net advances
Movement of NPAs (Gross)
Opening balances
Additions during the year
Reductions during the year
Closing balances
Movement of Net NPAs
Opening balances
Additions during the year
Reductions during the year
Closing balances
Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
Opening balances
Provisions made during the year
Write-off/Write back of excess provisions
Closing balances

247,04.80
465,87.88
93,41.85
619,50.83

241,34.38
147,23.49
141,53.07
247,04.80

207,16.61
248,36.19
51,68.00
403,84.81

201,88.53
77,26.41
71,98.33
207,16.61

39,88.18
217,51.68
41,73.85
215,66.02

39,45.84
69,97.08
69,54.74
39,88.18
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Additional disclosures given in terms of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systemically Important Non Deposit Taking Company and Deposit Taking
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50M. Capital Market
S.
Particulars
No.
1 Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity oriented mutual
funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;
2 Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment in
shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity oriented mutual funds;
3 Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity
oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security;
4 Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares /
convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds does not fully cover the advances;
5 Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers;
6 Loans sanctioned to corporate against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis
for meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising resources;

As at
March 31, 2022
463,11.28

422,48.11

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

463,11.28

7 Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues;
8 Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading;
9 All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered)
Total capital market exposure

(₹ in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2021

422,48.11

50N. Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap
S.
Particulars
No.
(i) The notional principal of swap agreements

As at
March 31, 2022
11,071.50
-

(ii) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfill their obligations under the agreements
(iii) Collateral required by the applicable NBFC upon entering into swap

-

(iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps
(v) The fair value of the swap book

(₹ in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2021
530,71.50
(8,22.45)

The Company as per its risk management policy, uses foreign exchange forward and other Interest Rate Swap (IRS) to hedge the risk exposure relating to changes in
foreign currency exchange rate and interest rate.
Refer note 3 for accounting policies on derivative and hedging activities and note 41 for risk management policies adopted by the Company.
Quantitative Disclosures
Particulars
S.
No.
(i) Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)
For hedging
(ii) Marked to Market Positions
a) Asset (+)
b) Liability (-)
(iii) Credit Exposure
(iv) Unhedged Exposures

As at
March 31, 2022
Currency
Interest Rate
Derivatives
Derivatives
110,71.50
-

-

(₹ in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2021
Currency
Interest Rate
Derivatives
Derivatives
530,71.50
(8,22.45)
-

-

50O. Disclosure on Restructuring of MSME advances
RBI vide its notification DBR.No.BP.BC.18/21.04.048/2018-19 dated January 01, 2019, DBR.No.BP.BC.26/21.04.048/2018-19 February 22, 2019,
DOR.No.BP.BC.34/21.04.048/2019-20 February 11, 2020 and RBI/2020-21/17 DOR.No.BP.BC/4/21.04.048/2020-21 dated August 06, 2020 has allowed a one-time
restructuring of existing loans to MSMEs classified as ‘standard’ without a downgrade in the asset classification, subject to the prescribed conditions.

The details of such restructured cases during the year is as follows:
S.
Particulars
No.
1 No. of accounts restructured (in numbers)
2 Amount

As at
March 31, 2022
1,319
126,96.60

(₹ in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2021
2,685
260,86.27
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Additional disclosures given in terms of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systemically Important Non Deposit Taking Company and Deposit Taking
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50P. Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by applicable NBFCs
S.
Particulars
No.
1 No. of contracts assigned during the year
2 Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold*
3 Aggregate consideration
4 Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years
5 Aggregate gain / loss over net book value
*represents the carrying value of portfolio sold out of loans classified as amortised cost

As at
March 31, 2022
18,318.00
1335,69.17
1335,69.17
-

(₹ in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2021
-

50Q. Disclosure on liquidity risk under RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 04, 2019 on Liquidity Risk Management
Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies
(i) Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)
No. of Significant
%age to Total
Amount
Counterparties*
Deposits
18
NA
8410,66.76
*Represents counterparties having exposure of more than 1 % of total liabilities

(₹ in lakhs)
%age to Total
Liabilities
94.04%

(ii) Top 20 large deposits - Not Applicable
(iii) Top 10 Borrowings
Amount
6476,57.25

(₹ in lakhs)
% of Total
Borrowings
75.98%

(iv) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument / product
Sr.
No.
1
2
3
4

Name of the instrument/product
Commercial Paper
Non Convertible debentures
Term Loans( Including External Commercial Borrowings)
Working Capital Demand Loan

Amount
(₹ in lakhs)
299,37.60
1586,69.55
5693,33.52
944,90.00

%age to Total
Liabilities
3.35%
17.74%
63.66%
10.56%

Note :-

1 Interest accrued but not due has been excluded from Borrowings/Total Public funds
2 Total Public Funds includes all borrowings including CDO, nominal value of CCPS (conversion period > 5 years) & hybrid perpetual debt.
(v) Stock ratios
Sr.
Particulars
No.
1 Commercial papers as a percentage of
2 Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one
year) as a percentage of
3 Other short-term liabilities as a percentage of

Total public
funds
3.51%
NA
37.82%

Total liabilities

Total assets

3.35%
NA

2.76%
NA

36.04%

29.73%

(vi) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management
Tata Motors Finance Solutions Limited (TMFSL) has an Asset Liability Supervisory Committee (ALCO), a Board level Sub-committee to oversee liquidity risk
management. ALCO consists of Non-Executive Director, Independent Directors and Group Chief Financial Officer. The ALCO meetings are held once in 3 months.
TMFSL has a Risk Management Committee (RMC), a sub-committee of the Board, which oversees overall risks to which the Company is exposed including liquidity
risk management. ALCO’s views on liquidity and asset liability management are presented to RMC for its independent review on a quarterly basis. The ALCO and RMC
also updates the Board at regular intervals.
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For the previous year i.e. financial year 2020-21
(i) Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)
(₹ in lakhs)
No. of Significant
%age to Total %age to Total
Amount
Counterparties*
Deposits
Liabilities
16
NA
96%
6360,83.91
*Represents counterparties having exposure of more than 1 % of total liabilities
(ii) Top 20 large deposits - Not Applicable
(iii) Top 10 Borrowings
Amount
5295,16.68

(₹ in lakhs)
% of Total
Borrowings
81%

(iv) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument / product
Sr.
No.
1
2
3
4

Name of the instrument/product
Commercial Paper
Long Term Debentures
Term Loans
Working Capital Demand Loan

Amount
(₹ in lakhs)
1003,26.73
989,44.34
3290,90.61
1243,32.48

%age to Total
Liabilities
15%
15%
49%
19%

Note :-

1 Interest accrued but not due has been excluded from Borrowings/Total Public funds
(v) Stock ratios
Sr.
Particulars
No.
1 Commercial papers as a percentage of
2 Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one
year) as a percentage of
3 Other short-term liabilities as a percentage of

Total public
funds
15%
NA
40%

Total liabilities

Total assets

15%
NA

12%
NA

39%

32%

(vi) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management
Tata Motors Finance Solutions Limited (TMFSL) has an Asset Liability Supervisory Committee (ALCO), a Board level Sub-committee to oversee liquidity risk
management. ALCO consists of Non-Executive Director, Independent Directors and Group Chief Financial Officer. The ALCO meetings are held once in 3 months.
TMFSL has a Risk Management Committee (RMC), a sub-committee of the Board, which oversees overall risks to which the Company is exposed including liquidity
risk management. ALCO’s views on liquidity and asset liability management are presented to RMC for its independent review on a quarterly basis. The ALCO and RMC
also updates the Board at regular intervals.
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50R. Disclosure on Asset Classification and Provisions as per RBI notification RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13,
2021.
(₹ in lakhs)
Asset Classification as per RBI Norms
Asset classifica Gross Carrying Loss Allowances Net Carrying
Provisions
Difference between
tion as per Ind AS Amount as per (Provisions) as
Amount
required as per
Ind AS 109
109
Ind AS
required under
IRACP norms
provisions and
Ind AS 109
IRACP norms
1
Performing Asset
Standard Asset

2

5=3-4

6

7=4-6

7126,89.39
591,83.15
7718,72.54

22,31.09
14,95.26
37,26.35

7104,58.30
576,87.88
7681,46.18

44,57.89
20,64.46
65,22.35

(2,226.80)
(569.20)
(2,796.00)

Stage-3

46,156.83
8,531.05
6,517.60
745.34
15,793.99

12,942.94
2,131.27
5,755.24
736.57
8,623.08

33,213.89
6,399.79
762.36
8.77
7,170.92

4,815.96
6,928.94
5,384.40
651.26
12,964.60

(4,797.67)
370.84
85.32
(4,341.51)

61,950.82

21,566.01

40,384.81

17,780.56

3,785.46

2,021.26

23.19

1,998.07

Doubtful up to 1 Year
1 to 3 Years
More than 3 Years
Subtotal of Doubtful

Stage-3
Stage-3
Stage-3

Loss
Subtotal of NPA

Stage-3

Other items such as guarantees,
Stage-1
loan commitments, etc. which are in the scope of Ind
AS 109 but not covered under current Income Stage-2
Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning
(IRACP) norms
Stage-3
Subtotal
TOTAL

4

Stage-1
Stage-2

Subtotal
Non-Performing Asset (NPA)
SubStandard

3

Stage-1
Stage-2
Stage-3

-

8,126.97

23.19

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,021.26

23.19

1,998.07

714,710.65
59,183.15
61,950.82
835,844.62

2,254.28
1,495.26
21,566.01
25,315.55

712,456.37
57,687.88
40,384.81
810,529.06

4,457.89
2,064.46
17,780.56
24,302.91

23.19
(2,203.61)
(569.20)
3,785.46
1,012.65

Note: In terms of requirement of RBI notification no. mentioned above on implementation of Indian Accounting Standards, Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs)
are required to create an impairment reverse for any short fall in impairment allowance under Ind AS 109 and income Recognition and Asset Classification and
Provisioning (IRACP) norms (including provision on standard assets). The Impairment allowance under Ind AS 109 made by the company exceeds the total provision
required under IRACP (Including standard assets provisioning), as at March 31, 2022 and accordingly, no amount is required to be transferred to impairment reverse.

TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED (CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
Note 50
Additional disclosures given in terms of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systemically Important Non Deposit Taking Company and Deposit Taking
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (as amended)
For the previous year i.e. financial year 2020-21
Asset Classification as per RBI Norms

Asset classifica Gross Carrying Loss Allowances
tion as per Ind AS Amount as per (Provisions) as
109
Ind AS
required under
Ind AS 109

1
Performing Asset
Standard Asset

2

4

Provisions
required as per
IRACP norms

(₹ in lakhs)
Difference between
Ind AS 109
provisions and
IRACP norms

5=3-4

6

7=4-6

Stage-1
Stage-2

6039,28.62
658,37.00
6697,65.62

59,41.95
34,35.19
93,77.14

5979,86.67
624,01.81
6603,88.48

Subtotal
Non-Performing Asset (NPA)
SubStandard

3

Net Carrying
Amount

22,46.98
14,58.65
37,05.63

36,94.97
19,76.54
56,71.51

Stage-3

135,21.88

34,27.38

100,94.50

13,80.28

20,47.10

Doubtful up to 1 Year
1 to 3 Years
More than 3 Years
Subtotal of Doubtful

Stage-3
Stage-3
Stage-3

109,98.35
1,76.77
7.80
111,82.92

4,99.14
59.23
2.43
5,60.80

104,99.22
1,17.53
,5.37
106,22.12

75,92.02
159.93
,6.40
77,58.35

(70,92.89)
(100.70)
(,3.97)
(71,97.56)

Loss
Subtotal of NPA

Stage-3

247,04.80

39,88.18

207,16.62

91,38.63

(51,50.45)

8,31.29

4.00

8,27.28

Other items such as guarantees,
Stage-1
loan commitments, etc. which are in the scope of Ind
AS 109 but not covered under current Income Stage-2
Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning
(IRACP) norms
Stage-3
Subtotal
TOTAL

Stage-1
Stage-2
Stage-3

-

4.00

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

8,31.29
6047,59.90
658,37.00
247,04.80
6953,01.71

4.00
59,45.95
34,35.19
39,88.18
133,69.32

8,27.28
5988,13.96
624,01.81
207,16.62
6819,32.39

22,46.98
14,58.65
91,38.63 128,44.26

4.00
36,98.97
19,76.54
51,50.45
5,25.06
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
Note 51
Additional disclosures given in terms of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systemically Important Non Deposit Taking Company and Deposit Taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 (as amended)
51S. Liquidity Coverage Ratio
Tata Motors Finance Solutions Limited (TMFSL) has an Asset Liability Supervisory Committee (ALCO), a Board level Sub-committee to oversee liquidity risk management. ALCO consists of
Non-Executive Director, Independent Directors, Chief Executive Officer and Group Chief Financial Officer. The ALCO meetings are held every quarter. TMFSL has a Risk Management
Committee (RMC), a sub-committee of the Board, which oversees overall risks to which the Company is exposed including liquidity risk management (LRM). ALCO’s views on liquidity and
asset liability management are presented to RMC for its independent review on a regular basis. The ALCO and RMC also updates the Board at regular intervals.

RBI vide circular dated November 4, 2019 has made it mandatory for NBFCs to implement Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) with effect from December 1, 2020. Accordingly, the Board and
ALCO has approved the Liquidity risk management policy including LCR policy. The overall Liquidity risk management of TMFSL is under the guidance of the ALCO and within the overall
framework of the Board approved policies. The mandated regulatory threshold as per the transition plan is embedded into the policy to ensure maintenance of adequate liquidity
buffers. LCR computations are reported to ALCO and the Board for oversight and periodical review. LCR seeks to ensure that TMFSL has an adequate stock of unencumbered HighQuality Liquid Assets (HQLA) that can be converted into cash promptly and immediately to meet its liquidity needs under a 30-day calendar liquidity stress scenario. As a strategy, TMFSL
is investing in government securities and balance in current account with banks which has resulted in a high level of HQLA. TMFSL follows the criteria laid down by the RBI for month-end
calculation of High-Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA), gross outflows and inflows within the next 30-day period. HQLA predominantly comprises bank deposits and cash and bank balance.
TMFSL is funded through Commercial papers, term loans from banks, long term bonds, and foreign currency borrowings. All significant outflows and inflows determined in accordance
with RBI guidelines are included in the prescribed LCR computation. The Company assesses the impact on short term liquidity gaps dynamically under various scenarios covering business
projections under normal as well as varying market conditions. Periodical reports are placed before the Company’s ALCO for perusal and review. The LCR is calculated by dividing a
TMFSLs` stock of HQLA by its total stressed net cash outflows over next 30-day period.

RBI has mandated a minimum LCR of 30% from December 1, 2020 and TMFSL’s LCR stood at 134% for the quarter ended March 31, 2022.
Below is the quarterly summary of LCR values for financial year 2021- 22.
Quarter ended
March 31, 2022
No.

(i)
(ii)
(iii)
1

Particulars

High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA)
Fixed Deposits (unencumered)
Cash & Bank Balance
Investment in Government Securities
Total HQLA

(ii)
(iii)
6
7
8

Cash Outflow
Deposits (for deposit taking companies)
Unsecured wholesale funding
Secured wholesale funding
Additional requirements, of which
Outflows related to derivative exposures and other
collateral requirements
Outflows related to loss of funding on debt products
Credit and liquidity facilities
Other contractual funding obligations
Other contingent funding obligations
Total Cash Outflow

9
10
11
12

Cash Inflow
Secured lending
Inflows from fully performing exposures
Other cash inflows
Total Cash Inflow

2
3
4
5
(i)

Total
Unweighted
Value

Total
Weighted
Value

Quarter ended December
31, 2021
Total
Unweighted
Value

Total
Weighted
Value

Quarter ended
September 30, 2021
Total
Unweighted
Value

Total
Weighted
Value

(₹ in lakhs)
Quarter ended
June 30, 2021
Total
Unweighted
Value

Total
Weighted
Value

15,055.57
25,976.39
410,31.96

15,055.57
25,976.39
410,31.96

19,137.99
6,404.85
4,047.63
295,90.47

19,137.99
6,404.85
4,047.63
295,90.47

34,676.16
3,178.29
378,54.45

34,676.16
3,178.29
378,54.45

29,672.76
3,419.95
330,92.71

29,672.76
3,419.95
330,92.71

47,653.19
22,625.56

54,801.16
26,019.39

17,517.57
18,014.84

20,145.21
20,717.07

4,601.45
21,514.32

5,291.67
24,741.46

8,997.89
23,035.86

10,347.58
26,491.24

33,676.38
2,313.82
1062,68.95

38,727.84
2,660.89
1222,09.28

16,911.71
2,013.54
544,57.66

19,448.47
2,315.57
626,26.32

47.77
7,516.28
1,936.32
356,16.14

54.93
8,643.72
2,226.77
409,58.55

243.30
9,867.21
1,699.95
438,44.21

279.79
11,347.29
1,954.94
504,20.84

60,529.19
234,172.12
2947,01.31

45,396.89
175,629.09
2210,25.98

56,223.08
222,704.60
2789,27.68

42,167.31
167,028.45
2091,95.76

28,907.17
224,683.57
2535,90.74

21,680.38
168,512.68
1901,93.06

41,389.33
143,940.43
1853,29.76

31,042.00
107,955.33
1389,97.33

13 Total HQLA
410,31.96
295,90.47
378,54.45
14 Total Net Cash Outflow
305,52.32
156,56.58
102,39.64
15 LIQUIDUTY COVERAGE RATIO (%)
134%
189%
370%
Notes:
(i) Total Unweighted Value (average) and Total weighted Value (average) are calculated taking simple averages of monthly observations for the respective quarter.
(ii) Inflows from fully performing exposures represents inflow from both secured and unsecured loans and advances.

330,92.71
126,05.21
263%
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
Note 51
Additional disclosures given in terms of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systemically Important Non Deposit Taking Company and Deposit Taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 (as amended)
Below is the quarterly summary of LCR values for financial year 2020- 2021.

No.

Particulars

High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA)
(i) Fixed Deposits (unencumered)
(ii) Cash & Bank Balance
1 Total HQLA

2
3
4
5
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
6
7
8

Cash Outflow
Deposits (for deposit taking companies)
Unsecured wholesale funding
Secured wholesale funding
Additional requirements, of which
collateral requirements
Outflows related to loss of funding on debt products
Credit and liquidity facilities
Other contractual funding obligations
Other contingent funding obligations
Total Cash Outflow

9
10
11
12

Cash Inflow
Secured lending
Inflows from fully performing exposures
Other cash inflows
Total Cash Inflow

Quarter ended
March 31, 2021
Total
Total
Unweighted
Weighted
Value
Value

Quarter ended December
31, 2020
Total
Total
Unweighted Weighted
Value
Value

Quarter ended
September 30, 2020
Total
Total
Unweighted
Weighted
Value
Value

(₹ in lakhs)
Quarter ended
June 30, 2020
Total
Total
Unweighted Weighted
Value
Value

378,33.33
397,99.67
776,33.00

378,33.33
397,99.67
776,33.00

150,00.00
454,57.33
604,57.33

150,00.00
454,57.33
604,57.33

100,00.00
171,71.67
271,71.67

100,00.00
171,71.67
271,71.67

166,66.67
54,09.33
220,76.00

166,66.67
54,09.33
220,76.00

396,52.15
231,46.83
138,70.40
19,72.39
786,41.77

455,99.97
266,18.86
159,50.96
22,68.25
904,38.04

288,89.08
248,81.67
1,14.19
143,14.89
17,05.15
699,04.98

332,22.44
286,13.92
1,31.32
164,62.12
19,60.92
803,90.72

394,82.48
352,41.02
100,11.73
12,83.77
860,19.00

454,04.85
405,27.17
115,13.49
14,76.33
989,21.84

267,31.90
310,78.16
88,39.60
9,97.02
676,46.68

307,41.69
357,39.89
101,65.54
11,46.58
777,93.69

287,64.51
1072,08.13
1359,72.64

215,73.38
804,06.10
1019,79.48

254,87.48
978,90.36
1233,77.84

191,15.61
734,17.77
925,33.38

307,49.13
1054,37.87
1361,87.00

230,61.85
790,78.40
1021,40.25

272,51.09
790,33.94
1062,85.03

204,38.31
592,75.46
797,13.77

Total
Total
Total
776,33.00
604,57.33
271,71.67
13 Total HQLA
226,09.51
200,97.68
247,30.46
14 Total Net Cash Outflow
15 LIQUIDUTY COVERAGE RATIO (%)
343%
301%
110%
Notes:
(i) Total Unweighted Value (average) and Total weighted Value (average) are calculated taking simple averages of monthly observations for the respective quarter.
(ii) Inflows from fully performing exposures represents inflow from both secured and unsecured loans and advances.

Total
220,76.00
194,48.42
114%

51U. Other disclosures
1 No penalties were imposed by RBI and other regulators during the financial year 2021-22. (financial year 2020-21: Nil)
2 The Company has not purchased any non-performing financial assets during the financial year 2021-22. (financial year 2020-21: Nil)
3 The Company does not have any exposure in real estate sector during the financial year 2021-22. (financial year 2020-21: Nil)
4 The Company has not exceeded the prudential exposure limits in respect to single borrower limit / group borrower limit during the financial year 2021-22. (financial year 2020-21:
Nil)
5 The Company is only registered with Reserve Bank of India as a Systemically Important Non Deposit Taking Non Banking Financial Company.
6 The Company has not entered in to any securitisation transactions during the financial year 2021-22 or holds any securitisation exposure as on March 31, 2022. (financial year 202021: Nil)
7 The Company has not drawn down any amounts from the reserves during the financial year 2021-22 except as disclosed in Statement of Changes in Equity. (financial year 2020-21:
Nil)
8 The Company has not sold any Financial Assets to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction during financial year 2021-22. (financial year 2020-21: Nil)
9 The Company has not financed any products of parent company during the financial year 2021-22. (financial year 2020-21: Nil)
10 Overseas assets (for those with joint ventures and subsidiaries abroad)
The Company does not have any joint venture or subsidiary abroad, hence not applicable
11 Unsecured advances
As at March 31, 2022, the amount of unsecured advances stood at ` 83,564.67 Lakhs (March 31, 2021: ` 433,02.46 Lakhs)
The Company has not granted unsecured advances against collateral of intangible securities such as charge over the rights, licenses or authority
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Fair value measurements
(a) Financial instruments by categories
The following table presents the carrying amounts of each category of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2022.
Financial assets
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

Amortised cost

Investments
Loans
Trade & other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets
Total

297,02.23
635,171.43
78,21.41
1900,52.91
67,41.09
8694,89.07

Financial liabilities
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

Amortised Cost

Borrowings
Debt securities
Trade & other payables
Other financial liabilities
Total

6638,23.52
1886,07.15
47,40.90
345,94.50
8917,66.07

FVTPL

FVOCI

51,50.00
51,50.00

Derivative
instruments in
hedging
relationship
-

1733,36.37
1733,36.37

(₹ in lakhs)
Total carrying
value
348,52.23
8085,07.80
78,21.41
1900,52.91
67,41.09
10479,75.44

(₹ in lakhs)
Derivative
instruments not in Total carrying
hedging
value
relationship
6638,23.52
1886,07.15
47,40.90
345,94.50
8917,66.07

(b) Fair value hierarchy
Set out below, is a comparison by class of carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial assets/ liabilities, other than those with the carrying amounts that are
reasonable approximations of fair values:
(₹ in lakhs)
As at March 31, 2022
Particulars
Carrying value
Fair value
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
Total
Financial assets measured at fair value
(a)
Investments
51,50.00
51,50.00
51,50.00
51,50.00
(b)
Loans
1733,36.37
1733,36.37
1733,36.37
1733,36.37
Total
1784,86.37
1784,86.37
51,50.00
1733,36.37
1784,86.37
(₹ in lakhs)
Particulars
Financial assets measured at amortised cost for
which fair value is disclosed
(a)
Loans
Total

Carrying value

6351,71.43
6351,71.43

Fair value

6409,65.49
6409,65.49

As at March 31, 2022
Level 1
Level 2

-

-

Level 3

Total

6409,65.49
6409,65.49

6409,65.49
6409,65.49
(₹ in lakhs)

Particulars
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
for which fair value is disclosed
(a)
Debt securities
Total

Carrying value

1586,69.55
1586,69.55

Fair value

1625,42.99
1625,42.99

As at March 31, 2022
Level 1
Level 2

-

1625,42.99
1625,42.99

Level 3

Total

-

1625,42.99
1625,42.99
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Note 53
Fair value measurements
(a) Financial instruments by categories
The following table presents the carrying amounts of each category of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2021:
Financial assets
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

Amortised cost

Investments
Loans
Trade & other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other bank balances
Other financial assets
Total

6811,01.11
57,60.22
810,29.46
50,00.00
14,94.19
7743,84.98

FVTPL
60,01.92
60,01.92

(₹ in lakhs)
Total carrying
value
60,01.92
6811,01.11
57,60.22
810,29.46
50,00.00
14,94.19
7803,86.90
(₹ in lakhs)

Derivative
instruments in
Amortised Cost
hedging
relationship

Financial liabilities

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

Borrowings
Debt securities
Trade & other payables
Derivative financial instruments
Other financial liabilities
Total

4534,23.09
1992,71.07
27,97.10
66,63.32
6621,54.58

8,22.45
8,22.45

Total carrying
value
4534,23.09
1992,71.07
27,97.10
8,22.45
66,63.32
6629,77.03

(b) Fair value hierarchy
Set out below, is a comparison by class of carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial assets/ liabilities, other than those with the carrying
amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:
(₹ in lakhs)
As at March 31, 2021
Particulars
Carrying value
Fair value
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
Total
Financial assets measured at fair value
(a) Investments
60,01.92
60,01.92
53.81
59,48.11
60,01.92
Total
60,01.92
60,01.92
53.81
59,48.11
60,01.92
(₹ in lakhs)
Particulars
Financial assets measured at amortised cost for
which fair value is disclosed
(a) Loans
Total
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
(a) Derivative instruments
Total
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
for which fair value is disclosed
(a) Debt securities
Total

Carrying value

Fair value

As at March 31, 2021
Level 1
Level 2

Level 3

-

Total

6811,01.11
6811,01.11

6895,87.45
6895,87.45

-

6895,87.45
6895,87.45

6895,87.45
6895,87.45

8,22.45
8,22.45

8,22.45
8,22.45

-

8,22.45
8,22.45

-

8,22.45
8,22.45

989,44.34
989,44.34

1028,70.28
1028,70.28

-

1028,70.28
1028,70.28

-

1028,70.28
1028,70.28
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Note 53
Fair value measurements
Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities that are measured by reference to quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This category consists of quoted equity shares and mutual fund investments.

Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than
quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e; as prices) or indirectly (i.e; derived from prices).

Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on
assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available
market data. This level of hierarchy include loans.
Valuation technique used to determine fair value of financial instruments
1. Derivatives instruments are fair valued using market observable rates and published prices together with forecast cash flow information where applicable
are classified in level 2. The fair value (i.e. Market to Market) of the derivative instruments is provided by independent third party external valuer (i.e.
reputed banks/financial institution.
2. The fair value of loans arising from financing activities has been estimated by discounting expected cash flows using rates at which loans of similar credit
quality and maturity would be made and internal assumptions such as expected credit losses and estimated collateral value as at March 31, 2022 and
March 31, 2021. Since significant unobservable inputs are applied in measuring the fair value of loans arising from finance activities are classified in Level 3.

3. The fair value of borrowings is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows, using a discount rate equivalent to the risk-free rate of return,
adjusted for the credit spread considered by the lenders for instruments of similar maturity and credit quality are classified in level 2.

4. The fair value of the borrowings carrying floating-rate of interest is not impacted due to interest rate changes and will not be significantly different from
its carrying amounts.
5. Management uses its best judgment in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there are inherent limitations in any estimation
technique. Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair value estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of all the amounts
that the Company could have realised or paid in sale transactions as of respective dates. As such, the fair value of the financial instruments subsequent to
the respective reporting dates may be different from the amounts reported at each period / year end.
Fair value of financial assets/liabilities measured at amortised cost
The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities other than those disclosed in table above are considered to be the same as their fair values
due to the short term maturities of instruments or no material differences in the values.
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Note 54
Financial risk management
The Company's activities expose it to market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s risk management strategies focus on
the un-predictability of these elements and seek to minimise the potential adverse effects on its financial performance. Centralised treasury department and risk management department advises
on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company and provides assurance to the Company’s senior management that the Company’s financial risk
activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives.
(A) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its
- operating activities, primarily loans arising from financing activities;
- Investing activites, including primarily investments in debt securities, preference shares, equity shares and mutual fund schemes; and
- financing activities, including term deposits and balances with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments.
Exposure to Credit Risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure, being the total of the carrying amount of balances with banks, time deposits with banks, loans arisng from
financing activities, Investment in debt instruments, derivative instruments, trade receivables and other financial assets excluding equity investments.
Financial assets that are neither past due or impaired
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks/financial institutions is generally low as the said deposits have been made with banks/financial institution who have been
assigned high credit rating by international/domestic rating agencies.
Credit risk on derivative instruments is generally low as the Company enters into derivative contracts with reputed banks.
Investments of surplus funds are made only with internally approved financial institutions/counter party and primarily include investments in mutual funds and bank deposits.
None of the Company’s cash equivalents, including time deposits with banks, are past due or impaired. Regarding the trade receivables and other receivables, and other financial assets that are
neither impaired nor past due, there were no indications as at March 31, 2021, that defaults in payment obligations will occur.
i) Loans arising from financing activities - Credit quality of financial assets and impairment loss
Loans from financing activities to customers. Credit risk for loans is managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and periodic monitoring of the creditworthiness of
its customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. Credik risk is monitored by the credit risk department of the Company's independent Risk
department/function who have the responsibility for reviewing and managing credit risk.
The Company creates & secures first and exclusive collateral charge at the time of loan origination on all vehicles for which vehicle financing loans are given. Hypothecation endorsement is
obtained in favour of the Company in the Registration Certificate of the Vehicle funded under the vehicle finance category. Any surplus remaining after settlement of outstanding loan by way of
sale of vehicle (collateral) is returned to the customer. Other than the above, for the corporate lending loan exposure, wherever required the Company obtains security cover in the form of
immoveable properties by creating charge over the collateral.
For the loans financed to customers the Company covers/secures the credit risk associated with the loans lended to customers by creating an exclusive charge/hypotheciation/security on the
assets as mentioned/sepecified in the loan agreement wih the customers.
Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have similar economic features that would cause
their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. The Company is in retail & corporate lending business on pan India basis.
Vehicle Finance consists of lending for purchase of used Commercial Vehicles and Passenger Vehicles against security. Hypothecation endorsement is made in favour of the Company in the
Registration Certificate in respect of all registerable collateral. Portfolio is reasonably well diversified across South, North, East and Western parts of the country. Similarly, sub segments within
Used Vehicle Finance like refinance against existing vehicles and repurchase vehicles (first time buyers), leading to well diversified into sub product mix to mitigate concentration risk.
The maximum credit exposure to any single customer from the financing business as of March 31, 2022 was ` 155,59.05 lakhs (March 31, 2021 was ` 136,26.73 lakhs).
On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses the 3 staging Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model to assess the provision for impairment loss allowance. The model takes into account a
continuing credit evaluation of Company's customers’ financial condition; ageing of loans; the value and adequacy of collateral received from the customers; the Company's historical loss
experience; and adjusted for forward looking information. The Company defines default as an event when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
The Company makes allowances for losses on its portfolio of loans on the basis of expected future collection from receivables. The future collection are estimated on the basis of past collection
trend which are adjusted for changes in current circumstances as well as expected changes in collection on account of future with respect to certain macro economic factors. The Company’s
impairment assessment and measurement approach is set out in Note 3(xvi - A) - Accounting policies.

TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED (CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
Note 54
Financial risk management
The following table provides information about the credit quality of financial assets and impairment loss
The ageing of loans as of balance sheet date is given below. The ageing analysis have been considered from the due date.
Stage-1
Loans (Gross)
Particulars
As at 31st March 2021
Transfers during the year
Transfer to Stage-1
Transfer to Stage-2
Transfer to Stage-3

Impairment
Impairment
Impairment
Loans (Gross)
Loans (Gross)
loss allowance
loss allowance
loss allowance
65,837

3,435

24,741

3,988

18,726
(45,896)
(26,088)
(53,257)

1,051
(353)
(1,550)
(853)

(17,245)
46,296
(14,635)
14,415

(820)
448
(971)
(1,343)

(1,481)
(401)
40,723
38,842

(231)
(94)
2,521
2,196

-

(1,974)

-

(1,688)

(38,275)

17,206

(1,318,180)

New
Credit
Exposure
during the year (net of
repayments)

1,480,234

Amount Written off During
the year

-

824

-

712,689.39

430

-

2,254.68

Impairment loss allowance

694,470

13,369

-

-

(0)
(0)

16,624

(1,382)

(3,832)

3,748

(1,360,287)

678

356

8,512

1,320

1,505,952

2,500

(6,312)

(6,312)

(6,312)

(6,312)

61,950.82

21,565.61

833,823.36

25,315.56

1,495.26

Stage-2

15,080

Stage-3

Total

Impairment
Impairment
Impairment
Loans (Gross)
Loans (Gross)
Loans (Gross)
loss allowance
loss allowance
loss allowance
451,641

3,068

45,654

18,064
(34,802)
(6,802)
(23,540)

1,082
(138)
(31)
912

(16,392)
35,139
(3,331)
15,415

(947)
182
(228)
(994)

(1,671)
(337)
10,133
8,125

(134)
(43)
259
82

-

1,118

-

689

-

(432)

Impact of change in credit
risk on account of stage
movement

Loans (Gross)

(₹ in lakhs)

-

-

59,183.15

Stage-1

Transfers during the year
Transfer to Stage-1
Transfer to Stage-2
Transfer to Stage-3

Total

5,946

Changes in Opening Credit
Exposure

Particulars
As at 31st March 2020

Stage-3

603,893

Impact of change in credit
risk on account of stage
movement

As at 31st March 2022

Stage-2

2,491

24,054

3,865

Loans (Gross)

Impairment loss allowance

521,349

(0)
(0)
(0)

9,424

-

1,375

Changes in Opening Credit
Exposure

(573,259)

(97)

(20,314)

(796)

(3,989)

7,282

(597,561)

6,389

New
Credit
Exposure
during the year (net of
repayments)

749,051

944

25,081

2,045

4,120

761

778,252

3,750

-

-

(7,569)

(7,569)

(7,569)

(7,569)

24,740.80

3,988.18

694,470.44

13,369.33

Amount Written off During
the year
As at 31st March 2021

603,892.64

5,945.96

65,837.00

3,435.19

Changes in the allowance for credit losses in loans are as follows:
Particulars
Balance at the beginning
Impairment loss recognised/(reversed)
Amounts written off
Balance at the end

(₹ in lakhs)
For the year ended March 31,
2022
2021
133,69.33
94,24.34
182,02.79
115,13.86
(62,56.57)
(75,68.87)
253,15.54
133,69.33

Modification of financial assets not resulting in derecognition:
There has been no modification of financial assets during financial year ended March 31,
2022. Details for modification of financials assets which did not result in derecognition in
finacial year ended March 31, 2021 is given below:
Particulars
Carrying amount before modification
Modificiation (loss)/gain net of Impairment loss allowance measured at
lifetime expected credit loss

₹ in lakhs
255,26.56
(7,55.96)
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Financial risk management
Reconciliaition for financial assets in level 3 is as given below.
For the Year
ended March
31, 2022
162,721.78
10,614.59
173,336.37

Particulars
Balance at the beginning of the period/year
Additions during the period/year
MTM (loss)/gain recognized in OCI
MTM gain recognized in P&L
Realised during the period/year
Balance at the end of the period/year

For the year
ended March
31, 2021
-

(B) Management of Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and
ensure that funds are available for use as and when required.
The Company manages the liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and
by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and liquid schemes of mutual funds, which carry no/negligible mark
to market risks.
The below table analyses the Company’s financial liabilities as at the reporting date, into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period (as at that date) to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the below table are the contractual un-discounted cash flows.
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments as at March 31, 2022:
(₹ in lakhs)
Carrying
Due in 1st
Due in 2nd
Due in 3rd to Due after 5th Total contractual
amount
year
year
5th year
year
cashflows
Non derivatives
6638,23.52
3327,06.77
2106,60.25
7805,97.68
Borrowings
2372,30.66
47,40.90
45,59.08
117.26
48,54.41
Trade and other payables
1,78.06
1886,07.15
700,42.24
748,10.56
2127,71.97
Debt securities
679,19.17
345,94.50
337,28.48
8,66.02
345,94.50
Other financial liabilities
Derivatives financial liabilities
Derivative contracts
Total
8917,66.07
4410,36.57
3053,27.89
2864,54.09
10328,18.56
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments as at March 31, 2021:

Carrying
amount

Due in 1st
year

Non derivatives
4534,23.09
Borrowings
36,11.04
Trade and other payables
1992,71.07
Debt securities
66,63.32
Other financial liabilities
Derivatives financial liabilities
8,22.45
Derivative contracts
Total
6637,90.97
Market risk comprises of interest rate risk. Interest rate risk
movement in market rates of interest.

Due in 2nd
year

Due in 3rd to
5th year

Due after 5th
year

2647,03.10
902,40.48
1489,49.23
36,11.04
1202,99.48
356,73.54
635,50.47
52,20.33
13,24.41
8,22.45
3946,56.40
1259,14.02
2138,24.11
arises from variable rate borrowings that expose the

Total contractual
cashflows

5038,92.81
36,11.04
2195,23.49
65,44.74
8,22.45
7343,94.53
Company's financial performance, financial position and cash flows to the

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in
market rates relates primarily to the Company’s borrowings with floating/variable interest rates.
The Company borrow through various instruments which has floating rate/ interest rate reset clause which is exposed to interest rate risk.
The interest rate exposure on account of variable/floating rate foreign curreny borrowings is mitigated by some of the derivative contracts entered into by the Company as disclosed in (iv)
derivative financial instruments and hedging activities below.
As at the end of reporting year, the Company had following variable interest rate borrowings:
(₹ in lakhs)
Particulars

As at March
31, 2022

As at March
31, 2021

Variable rate borrowings *
6732,29.86
4427,00.58
* The above excludes the foreign currency denominated floating interest rate borrowings, the Company manages its interest rate risk by entering into interest rate swap and cross currency
interest rate swap derivative instruments in which it agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an
agreed-upon notional principal amount.
Interest rate sensitivity analysis
Profit or loss is sensitive to interest expense from variable rate borrowings as a result of changes in interest rate. Increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates at the balance sheet date
would result in an impact (decrease/increase in case of profit/(loss) before tax of Rs. 6732,29.86 lakhs and Rs. 4427,00.58 lakhs on income for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021
respectively.
The above sensitivity analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant and the borrowings outstanding at the reporting date have been outstanding for the entire reporting period.
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Capital management
The Company’s capital management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of long-term and short-term goals of the Company.
The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual operating plans and long-term product and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are met
through equity, convertible and non-convertible debt securities, senior notes and other long-term/short-term borrowings. The Company’s policy is aimed at combination of short-term and longterm borrowings.
The Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of regulatory capital ratio viz. CRAR.
The management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders. The Company’s goal is to continue to be able to provide return to shareholders by continuing to
distribute dividends in future periods. Refer the below note for dividend declared and paid.
Total debt includes all long and short-term borrowings as disclosed in notes 16 to 18 to the financial statements.
Below are the key regulatory capital ratios at the year end dates
Particulars
As at March
31, 2022
CRAR (%) *
20.39%
CRAR - Tier I capital (%)
20.10%
CRAR - Tier II capital (%)
0.29%

As at March
31, 2021
20.70%
19.81%
0.89%

* The above ratio has been computed in accordance with the guidelines issue by RBI on March 13, 2020.
In addition the Company has financial covenants relating to the borrowing facilities that it has taken from the lenders which is maintained by the Company.
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Note 55
Impact of COVID-19
Consequent to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Indian government announced a lockdown in March 2020. The relief measures announced by the Reserve Bank of
India and easing down of lockdown led to improvement in the economy. The second wave started in beginning of current fiscal. After June 2021 quarter end, the impact of
second wave started subsiding significantly and again the economy started resuming back to normal economy operations across the country. The impact of the recent
outbreak of third wave of Covid-19 has been mild till date but as a precautionary measure, localised/regional restrictions were there. While there is a good progress in
vaccination programme and the impact of recent wave was not severe, the final impact may be different than the estimated based on conditions prevailing as on date of
approval of these financial results. The Management will continue to closely monitor the material changes in the macro-economic factors impacting the operation of the
Company.

Note 56
Code of Social Security, 2020
The Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 (the 'Code') which may impact the contribution by the Company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity.The
effective date from which the Code and its provisions would be applicable is yet to be notified and the rules which would provide the details based on which financial impact
can be determined are yet to be framed after which the financial impact can be ascertained. The Company will complete its evaluation and will give appropriate impact, if any,
in the financial results following the Code becoming effective and the related rules being framed and notified.

Note 57 - Fraud
As required by Reserve Bank of India circular No RBI/2011-12/424 DNBS.PD.CC. No. 256 /03.10.042 / 2011-12 dated March 02, 2012 on monitoring of frauds, the Company has
reported fraud amounting to ₹ 233.46 lakhs during the period ended March 31, 2022 (during the year ended March 31, 2021: ₹ 4,54.15 lakhs) vide form FMR 1.

Note 58
Previous year's figures
Previous Year figures have been audited by a firm of chartered accountants, other than Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP. The same has been regrouped / reclassified wherever
required.
Note 59 - Assets held for sale
The Company has acquired underlying collateral in satisfaction of its receivable from certain borrowers and has classified those assets as held for sale. As at March 31, 2022
assets held for sale amounted to Rs. 2339.76 lacs. The Company expects to dispose off these assets in open market within next 1 year.

Note 60 - Information as required by Reserve Bank of India Circular on Resolution Framework for Covid-19 related stress dated August 6, 2020.

Type of
borrower

Exposure to accounts
classified as Standard
consequent to
implementation of
resolution plan – Position
as at the end of the
previous year (A)

Personal Loans
Corporate persons*
Of which MSMEs
Others
Total
*As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

Of (A), aggregate
debt
that slipped into
NPA
during the year

-

-

Of (A) amount
Of (A) amount paid Exposure
written off during by the borrowers
to
the half-year
during the halfyear accounts
classified
as
Standard
consequen
t to
implement
ation of
resolution
plan –
Position as
at March
31 2022
1.05
41940.61
419,41.66
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Note 61 - Transfer of Loans through Debt Assignment
The Company transfer standard loans through Direct Assignment route. Following table provide the details of loan transferred during the period indicated.
Particulars
Number of transactions
Number of loans assigned
Aggregate principal outstanding amount of loans assigned*
Sale consideration
Weighted average residual maturity (months)
Weighted average holding period (months)
Retention of beneficial economic interest
Tangible security coverage
Rating wise distribution of rated loans assigned
Number of instances (transactions) of replacing the transferred loans
Number of transferred loans replaced
* Sum of principal outstanding on assigned loans shown as 100%.
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Disclosure as per Annexure I of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systematically Important Non Deposit Taking Company and Deposit Taking Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (as amended)
LIABILITIES SIDE:

1
(i)

(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial Company inclusive of interest accrued
thereon but not paid:
Debentures
Secured
Unsecured
Term-loans
Commercial papers
Other loans
Working capital demand loan
Inter-corporate loans and borrowings

(₹ in lakhs)
Amount
Overdue

Amount
Outstanding
1619,37.23
5693,36.91
299,37.60

-

944,90.00

-

-

(Net of unamortised borrowing cost and discounting charges ₹ 62.40 lakhs; March 31,2021: ₹ 21,73.27 lakhs).

ASSETS SIDE:

2

Break-up of loans and advances including bills receivables [other than those included in (4) below]:

(i) Secured
(ii) Unsecured

3

Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and other assets towards AFC activities:

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors :
Financial lease
Operating lease
(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors :
Assets on hire
Repossessed assets
(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities:
Loans where assets have been repossessed
Loans other than (a) above

4

Break-up of investments:
Current (quoted)
Investments in debentures and bonds
Long-term investments (unquoted)
Investments in equity shares
Investments in debentures and bonds
Long Term Investments:
1 Quoted :
(i)
Government Securities

(₹ in lakhs)
Amount
Outstanding
7502,58.69
835,64.67
(₹ in lakhs)
Amount
Outstanding
12,02.45
8326,20.91
(₹ in lakhs)
Amount
Outstanding
99,58.98

105,00.00
51,50.00

197,43.25
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Schedule to the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021 of a non-deposit taking NBFC
Disclosure as per Annexure I of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systematically Important Non Deposit Taking Company and Deposit Taking Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (as amended)
ASSETS SIDE:
(₹ in lakhs)
5

Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above :
Category

Secured

(i) Related parties
Holding Company
Companies in the same group
(ii) Other than related parties
Total

7265,80.79
7265,80.79

Amount net of provisions
Unsecured

Total

95.00
821,52.85
822,47.85

95.00
8087,33.64
8088,28.64
(₹ in lakhs)

6

Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted):
Cost as at March 31,
2022

Category
(i) Related parties
Quoted
Unquoted
Associate
(ii) Other than related parties
Quoted
Unquoted
Total

Book value
(Net of provision)

-

-

105,00.00

105,00.00

51,50.00
156,50.00

51,50.00
156,50.00
(₹ in lakhs)

7

Other information
Particulars

Amount

(i) Gross non-performing assets
Related parties
Other than related parties
(ii) Net non-performing assets
Related parties
Other than related parties
(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

95.00
618,55.83
403,84.81
-
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